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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Holtville 
Holtville, California 
 
Report on the Financial Statements  
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Holtville (City), 
California, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance 
with the basis of accounting described in Note 1; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards 
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of 
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the 
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk 
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 



2 
 

Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate 
remaining fund information of the City of Holtville, California, as of June 30, 2016, and the respective changes in 
financial position and cash flows arising from cash transactions, where applicable thereof, for the fiscal year then 
ended, on the basis of accounting described in Note 1. 
 
Emphasis of Matter 
 
Change in Accounting Principles  
 
As discussed in Note 1 of the notes to the basic financial statements effective July 1, 2015, the City adopted the 
provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement 
and Applications. Our opinion has not been modified with respect to these matters.  
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
As discussed in Note 1 of the notes to the financial statements, the City prepares its financial statements on a 
prescribed basis of accounting that demonstrates compliance with the modified cash basis, which is a 
comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.   
 
Financial Condition 
 
The reader’s attention should be brought to Note 16, referring to the City’s financial condition as of June 30, 
2016. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Management has omitted the Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the budgetary comparison schedules for 
the Community Development Block Grant Special Revenue Fund and the Home Grant Special Revenue Fund that 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires to be presented to supplement 
the basic financial statements.  Such missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  
Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing information.  Budgets were not 
adopted for the Community Development Block Grant Special Revenue Fund or the Home Grant Special 
Revenue Fund.  
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Budgetary Comparison 
Schedules of the General Fund on pages 47 and 48, Local Transit Authority Special Revenue Fund on page 49, 
and Local Transportation Special Revenue Fund on page 50 be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have 
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the 
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the 
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
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Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City of Holtville’s basic financial statements.  The combining nonmajor funds financial statements, 
nonmajor fund budgetary comparison schedules, and combining Private-purpose Trust Funds financial statements 
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not required parts of the basic financial statements.  
 
The combining nonmajor funds financial statements, nonmajor fund budgetary comparison schedules, and 
combining Private-purpose Trust Funds financial statements are the responsibility of management and were 
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial 
statements.  The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial 
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation 
to the financial statements as a whole.   
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issue our report dated January 9, 2017, on our 
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the 
City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  
 

 
 
MOSS, LEVY & HARTZHEIM, LLP 
Culver City, California 
January 9, 2017 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

Assets:
Cash and investments 3,088,380$        1,943,497$        5,031,877$        
Cash and investments with fiscal agent                       320,750             320,750             
Restricted cash and investments                       324,043             324,043             
Internal balances (43,249)              43,249                                         
Deposits 8,916                 6,250                 15,166               
Loans receivable, net of allowance 2,599,177          2,599,177          

Total Assets 5,653,224          2,637,789          8,291,013          

Liabilities:
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year 27,224               384,518             411,742             
Due in more than one year 264,560             8,980,061          9,244,621          

Total Liabilities 291,784             9,364,579          9,656,363          

Net Position:
Restricted for:

Debt service                           644,793             644,793             
Other purposes 4,282,109          4,282,109          

Unrestricted 1,079,331          (7,371,583)         (6,292,252)         

Total Net Position (Deficit) 5,361,440$        (6,726,790)$       (1,365,350)$       

                                                                              

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements

CITY OF HOLTVILLE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2016
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ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS

Operating Capital
Charges for Contributions Contributions

Expenses Services and Grants and Grants

Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:

General government 882,210$        7,180$           -$                  -$                  
Public safety 1,495,583       10,646           343,763            
Public works 684,186          90,442           7,685                1,316,128         
Community development 1,032              13,852           2,451                                         

Total Governmental Activities 3,063,011       122,120         353,899            1,316,128         

Business-type Activities:
Water 1,081,117       1,544,891                               
Sewer 3,588,227       1,499,641      2,803,534         
Solid waste 230,090          246,000         

Total Business-type Activities 4,899,434       3,290,532      2,803,534         

Total Primary Government 7,962,445$     3,412,652$    353,899$          4,119,662$       

General Revenues and Transfers:
  Taxes: 
    Secured and unsecured property taxes
    Utility users tax
    Sales and use tax
    Franchise tax
    Other tax
  Motor vehicle in lieu - unrestricted
  Use of money and property
  Other
  Contributions from private-purpose trust fund, unrestricted
  Transfers

Total General Revenues and Transfers

Change in Net Position before Extraordinary Item

Extraordinary Item
  Loss on transfer of assets and liabilities 
    to RDA successor trust funds

Change in Net Position

Net Position (Deficit) at Beginning of Fiscal Year

Prior Period Adjustments

Net Position (Deficit) at Beginning of Fiscal Year, Restated

Net Position (Deficit) at End of Fiscal Year

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements

Functions/Programs

CITY OF HOLTVILLE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Program Revenues
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Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Totals

(875,030)$             -$                      (875,030)$           
(1,141,174)            (1,141,174)          

730,069                 730,069              
15,271                   15,271                

(1,270,864)            (1,270,864)          

463,774                 463,774              
714,948                 714,948              

15,910                   15,910                

1,194,632              1,194,632           

(1,270,864)            1,194,632              (76,232)               

106,256                 106,256              
479,255                 479,255              
518,089                 518,089              
124,239                 124,239              

32,460                   32,460                
514,190                 514,190              

20,389                   10,915                   31,304                
825,591                 825,591              
241,000                 241,000              
250,000                 (250,000)                                          

3,111,469              (239,085)               2,872,384           

1,840,605              955,547                 2,796,152           

(219,687)               (219,687)             

1,620,918              

3,440,522              (7,682,337)            (4,241,815)          

300,000                                               300,000              

3,740,522              (7,682,337)            (3,941,815)          

5,361,440$            (6,726,790)$          (1,365,350)$        

Changes in Net Position
Net (Expense) Revenue and 
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CITY OF HOLTVILLE
STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND FUND BALANCES 
ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2016

Community
General Development Home

Fund Block Grant Grant

Assets

Cash and investments 1,286,343$           481,599$         209$                  
Restricted cash and investments
Deposits 8,916                    
Due from other funds 376,108                
Loans receivable 12,400                  1,073,477        4,580,204          

Total assets 1,683,767$           1,555,076$      4,580,413$        

Liabilities:
Due to other funds 43,249$                -$                 -$                   

Total liabilities 43,249                                                                     

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 
Deferred revenue                          966,772           4,580,204          

Total deferred inflows of resources                              966,772           4,580,204          

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources 43,249                  966,772           4,580,204          

Fund Balances:
Restricted 481,599           209                    
Nonspendable 12,400                  106,705           
Unassigned 1,628,118

Total fund balances (deficits) 1,640,518             588,304           209                    

Total liabilities and fund balances 1,683,767$           1,555,076$      4,580,413$        

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements

Special Revenue Funds
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Local Transit Local Other Total
Authority Transportation Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Funds

881,060$               -$                       439,169$               3,088,380$            
                              

8,916                     
376,108                 

310,000                 5,976,081              

881,060$               -$                       749,169$               9,449,485$            

-$                       352,309$               23,799$                 419,357$               

                              352,309                 23,799                   419,357                 

                                                    310,000                 5,856,976              

                                                            310,000                 5,856,976              

                              352,309                 333,799                 6,276,333              

881,060                 439,169                 1,802,037              
119,105                 

(352,309) (23,799)                  1,252,010              

881,060                 (352,309)                415,370                 3,173,152              

881,060$               -$                       749,169$               9,449,485$            

Special Revenue Funds
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CITY OF HOLTVILLE
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND FUND BALANCES
ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS
June 30, 2016

Fund balances of governmental funds 3,173,152$          

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are
different because:

Certain loans receivable are not available to pay for current period expenditures
  and, therefore are offset by deferred revenue in the governmental funds.

Deferred revenue 5,856,976            

Allowance for an uncollectible loan has been set up in the amount of 
$3,376,904 for a certain loan receivable. (3,376,904)

Long-term debt and compensated absences have not been included
  in the governmental funds.

Claims payable (231,286)              
Compensated absences (60,498)                

Net position of governmental activities 5,361,440$          

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF HOLTVILLE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID, AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS - 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Community
General Development Home

Fund Block Grant Grant
Revenues Collected:

Taxes 1,123,025$         -$                    -$                    
Licenses, permits, and impact fees 6,895
Fines and penalties 1,014
Investment earnings 9,536 114 13
Intergovernmental 857,953
Charges for current services 114,211
Other revenues collected 828,042
Contributions from private-purpose trust fund 241,000
Program income 24,191 10,318

Total revenues collected 3,181,676 24,305 10,331

Expenditures Paid:
General government 776,971
Public safety 1,485,276
Public works 368,305
Community development 1,026
Capital outlay

Total expenditures paid 2,630,552 1,026

Excess of revenues collected over (under)
expenditures paid 551,124 23,279 10,331

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 550,564 2
Transfers out (42,956)

Total other financing sources (uses) 507,608 2

Net changes in fund balances before
Extraordinary Items 1,058,732 23,279 10,333

Extraordinary Item
Loss on transfer of assets and liabilities 

to RDA successor trust funds (219,687)

Net changes in fund balances 839,045

Fund balances (deficits), July 1, 2015 801,473 565,025 (10,124)

Fund balances (deficits), June 30, 2016 1,640,518$         588,304$            209$                   

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements

Special Revenue Funds
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Local Transit Local Other Total
Authority Transportation Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Funds Funds

-$                      -$                      137,274$              1,260,299$           
6,895
1,014

348 378 10,389
468,751 820,447 26,930 2,174,081

114,211
828,042
241,000

34,509

469,099 820,447 164,582 4,670,440

776,971
1,485,276

368,305
1,026

60 313,265 313,325

60 313,265 2,944,903

469,039 507,182 164,582 1,725,537

40,025 31,614 42,954 665,159
(181,614) (190,589) (415,159)

(141,589) 31,614 (147,635) 250,000

327,450 538,796 16,947 1,975,537

(219,687)

1,755,850

553,610 (891,105) 398,423 1,417,302

881,060$              (352,309)$             415,370$              3,173,152$           

Special Revenue Funds
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ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 1,755,850$   

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities differ because:

Certain notes receivable are reported in the governmental funds as expenditures and
then offset by an unearned revenue as they are not available to pay current expenditures.
Likewise, when the note is collected, it is reflected in revenue.  This is the net change 
between notes receivable collected and issued. (16,824)         

The amount below, included in the Statement of Activities, does not provide (require) the use of 
current financial resources and, therefore, is not reported as revenue or expenditure in 

 governmental funds (net change): 
Decrease in claims payable (99,847)         

Compensated absence expenditures reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and therefore, are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds.  This is the net change in compensated absences for the
current period. (18,261)         

Change in net position of governmental activities 1,620,918$   

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements

CITY OF HOLTVILLE
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS -
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016
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CITY OF HOLTVILLE
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND NET POSITION
ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS
June 30, 2016

Water Sewer Solid Waste
Fund Fund Fund Totals

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and investments 279,300$         1,664,197$      -$             1,943,497$      
Cash and investments with fiscal agent 320,750           320,750           
Restricted cash and investments 220,223           103,820           324,043           
Deposits receivable 6,250               6,250               
Due from other funds 43,249             80,990             124,239           

Total assets 863,522           1,855,257                        2,718,779        

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Due to other funds 80,990         80,990             
Compensated absences 3,730               3,788               7,518               
Current portion of long-term liabilities 297,000           80,000             377,000           

Total current liabilities 300,730           83,788             80,990         465,508           

Long-Term Liabilities:
Compensated absences 33,569             34,093             67,662             
Bonds payable 4,646,399        4,266,000        8,912,399        

Total long-term liabilities 4,679,968        4,300,093                        8,980,061        

Total liabilities 4,980,698        4,383,881        80,990         9,445,569        

NET POSITION (DEFICIT)

Restricted for debt service 540,973           103,820           644,793           
Unrestricted (4,658,149)       (2,632,444)       (80,990)        (7,371,583)       

Total net position (deficit) (4,117,176)$     (2,528,624)$     (80,990)$      (6,726,790)$     

                                                                            

Enterprise Funds

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF HOLTVILLE
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENSES PAID, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Water Sewer Solid Waste
Fund Fund Fund Totals

Operating Revenues Collected:
Charges for services 1,544,891$      1,499,641$      246,000$     3,290,532$      

Total operating revenues collected 1,544,891        1,499,641        246,000       3,290,532        

Operating Expenses Paid:
Salaries and wages 304,313           325,083           629,396           
Payroll expenses 110,258           88,688             198,946           
Training, safety, and clothing 16,902             12,975             29,877             
Materials, supplies, and services 423,247           283,567           230,090       936,904           

Total operating expenses paid 854,720           710,313           230,090       1,795,123        

Operating income arising from
cash transactions 690,171           789,328           15,910         1,495,409        

Non-Operating Revenues Collected
  (Expenses Paid):
Investment earnings 290                  10,625             10,915             
Interest expense (226,397)          (87,710)            (314,107)          
Capital outlay (2,790,204)       (2,790,204)       

Total non-operating revenues collected
 (expenses paid) (226,107)          (2,867,289)                           (3,093,396)       

Income (loss) arising from cash transactions
before transfers and capital contributions 464,064           (2,077,961)       15,910         (1,597,987)       

Capital grants received 2,803,534        2,803,534        

Transfers:
Transfers out (25,000)            (225,000)          (250,000)          

Changes in net position 439,064           500,573           15,910         955,547           

Net position (deficit), 
beginning of the fiscal year (4,556,240)       (3,029,197)       (96,900)        (7,682,337)       

Net position (deficit), end of the fiscal year (4,117,176)$     (2,528,624)$     (80,990)$      (6,726,790)$     

Enterprise Funds

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF HOLTVILLE
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Water Sewer Solid Waste

Fund Fund Fund Totals

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Receipts from user charges 1,544,891$      1,499,641$      246,000$         3,290,532$      
Interfund loan receipts (disbursements)                     15,910             (15,910)                                
Payments to suppliers (550,407)          (385,230)          (230,090)          (1,165,727)      
Payments for salaries (302,966)          (324,650)                              (627,616)          

Net Cash Provided (Used) by 
Operating Activities 691,518           805,671                               1,497,189        

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
  Financing Activities:
Acquisition and construction of                     
  capital assets                     (2,790,204)                          (2,790,204)      
Capital grants received                     2,803,534        2,803,534        
Principal paid (279,000)          (79,000)            (358,000)          
Interest paid (226,397)          (87,710)            (314,107)          

Net Cash Provided (Used) for Capital 
  and Related Financing Activities (505,397)          (153,380)                              (658,777)          

Cash Flows from Non-Capital 
 Financing Activities:
Transfers paid (25,000)            (225,000)                              (250,000)          

Net Cash Provided (Used) from 
  Non-Capital Financing Activities (25,000)            (225,000)                              (250,000)          

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest received 290                  10,625                                 10,915             

Net Cash Provided (Used) from 
  Investing Activities 290                  10,625                                 10,915             

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 161,411           437,916                               599,327           

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
  of fiscal year 658,862           1,330,101                            1,988,963        

Cash and cash equivalents, end
  of fiscal year 820,273$         1,768,017$      -$                 2,588,290$      

Reconciliation to Statement of Net Position:
Cash and investments 279,300$         1,664,197$      -$                 1,943,497$      
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 320,750                                                   320,750           
Restricted cash and investments 220,223           103,820                               324,043           

Total cash and cash equivalents, end
of fiscal year 820,273$         1,768,017$      -$                 2,588,290$      

                                                            (Continued)

Enterprise Funds

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF HOLTVILLE
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Water Sewer Solid Waste

Fund Fund Fund Totals

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to
  net cash provided (used) by operating
  activities:

Operating income 690,171$         789,328$         15,910$           1,495,409$      
Adjustments to reconcile operating income 
  to net cash provided by 
  operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
  (Increase) decrease in due from
   other funds                         15,910             15,910
  Increase (decrease) in due to 
   other funds (15,910)            (15,910)
  Increase (decrease) in compensated
   absences 1,347               433                  1,780

Net Cash Provided (Used)
 by Operating Activities 691,518$         805,671$         -$                 1,497,189$      

                                                                                

Enterprise Funds

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF HOLTVILLE
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS
June 30, 2016

Private-Purpose 

Trust 
Funds

ASSETS

Cash and investments with fiscal agents 469,061$                  
Restricted cash and investments 2,651,210                 
Notes receivable 46,792                      
Capital assets, not being depreciated 437,894                    

Total assets 3,604,957                 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Loss on refunding of debt 86,009                      

Total deferred outflows of resources 86,009                      

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 3,690,966                 

LIABILITIES

Long-term debt, due within one year 155,000                    
Long-term debt, due in more than one year 5,800,000                 

Total liabilities 5,955,000                 

NET POSITION (DEFICIT)

Unrestricted (2,264,034)                

Total net position (deficit) (2,264,034)$              

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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CITY OF HOLTVILLE
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Private-Purpose 
Trust 
Funds

Additions:
Investment revenue 44,093$                    
Tax and assessments 669,177                    
Forgiveness of uncollectible debt 219,687                    

Total Additions 932,957                    

Deductions: 
Administration 243,885                    
Interest expense 316,595                    
Amortization expense 4,032                        

Total deductions 564,512                    

Change in net position 368,445                    

Net Position (Deficit) - July 1, 2015 (2,332,479)                

Prior Period Adjustments (300,000)                   

Net Position (Deficit) - July 1, 2015, Restated (2,632,479)                

Net Position (Deficit) - June 30, 2016 (2,264,034)$              

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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NOTE 1 – REPORTING ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 

A.    Description of the Reporting Entity 
 

The City of Holtville (City) is a municipal corporation, operating as a general law city, and governed 
by a city council of five members.  As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America, these financial statements present the City of Holtville (the primary 
government) and its component unit.  The component units discussed in Note 1-B are included in the 
City's reporting entity because of the significance of its operational or financial relationship with the 
City. 
 

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, these basic 
financial statements present financial information for the City of Holtville (the primary government) 
and its component units. Blended component units, although legally separate entity, are in substance, 
part of the City’s operations and data from these units are combined with data of the City. Discretely 
presented component units, on the other hand, are reported in a separate column in the basic financial 
statements to emphasize their legal separateness from the City. Each blended component unit has a 
fiscal year end of June 30.  The blended component units are included in the City’s reporting entity 
because of the significance of their operational and financial relationship with the City.  There are no 
entities which meet the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, as 
amended by GASB Statement No. 39 and GASB Statement No. 61, criteria for discrete disclosure 
within these basic financial statements. 
 

B.   Individual Component Unit Disclosures 
 

Blended Component Unit.  The Financing Authority (Authority) of the City of Holtville is governed by 
the City Council of the City of Holtville.  Although it is legally separate from the City, the Authority is 
reported as if it were part of the primary government because the City Council is the governing board, 
and is able to impose its will on the Authority.   

 

C. Financial Statement Presentation 
 

Government-wide Statements: The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities include 
the financial activities of the overall City government.  Eliminations have been made to minimize the 
double counting of internal activities. 

 

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for 
each function of the City’s activities.  Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a 
program or function and, therefore, are clearly identifiable to a particular function.  Program revenues 
include grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of 
a particular program.  Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are 
presented as general revenues. 

 

Fund Financial Statements:  The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s 
funds.  Separate statements for each governmental fund are presented.  The emphasis of fund financial 
statements is on individual funds, each of which is displayed in a separate column. 
 

Governmental fund financial statements include a Balance Sheet and a Statement of Revenues 
Collected, Expenditures Paid, and Changes in Fund Balances Arising from Cash Transactions for all 
major governmental funds and non-major funds aggregated. An accompanying schedule is presented to 
reconcile and explain the differences in net position as presented in these statements to the net position 
presented in the government-wide financial statements. 
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NOTE 1 – REPORTING ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
C. Financial Statement Presentation (Continued) 

 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or 
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who 
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or 
segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among 
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.  

 
The reconciliation of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-wide Financial Statements is 
provided to explain the differences created by the integrated approach of GASB Statement No. 34. 
 
Proprietary fund financial statements 
 
Proprietary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues 
Collected, Expenses Paid, and Changes in Net Position, and a Statement of Cash Flows Arising from 
Cash Transactions for all proprietary funds.  
 
Fiduciary fund financial statements 
 
Fiduciary fund financial statements include a Statement of Net Position and Statement of Changes in 
Net Position. 
 

D. Accounting Policies 
 

The City of Holtville records transactions, and accordingly, these financial statements were prepared, 
using the modified cash basis of accounting.  This is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as prescribed by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and the American Institute of Certified Public 
Accountants.  The following are some of the ways that the modified cash basis of accounting differs 
from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require all governmental 
funds to use the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues should be recognized when they 
become measurable and available as net current assets.  The City of Holtville, however, recognizes 
revenue when it is received by the City. 

 
Taxpayer-assessed income, gross receipts, and sales taxes are recognized when the revenue is received 
by the City.  Refunds of such taxes are recognized when they are paid.  Under accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America, these taxes are considered "measurable" when in 
the hands of intermediary collecting governments and should be recognized as revenue at that time.   
Anticipated refunds of such taxes are recorded as liabilities and reductions of revenue when they are 
measurable and their validity seems certain. 
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NOTE 1 – REPORTING ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
D. Accounting Policies (Continued) 

 
Expenditures are generally recognized under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related 
fund liability is incurred.  An exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on long-term 
debt is recognized when due. The modified cash basis of accounting recognizes all expenditures when 
they are paid. 

 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require all proprietary funds 
and government-wide reporting to use the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues should be recognized 
when they are earned, and their expenses should be recognized when they are incurred.  The modified 
cash basis of accounting recognizes revenues when received and expenses when paid. 
 
The purchase of capital items in the proprietary funds should be recorded as capital assets and 
depreciated under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; however, 
the City records these items as expenses when they are paid. 
 
The purchase of capital assets should be capitalized and depreciated in the Statement of Net Position 
and Statement of Activities under GASB Statement No. 34, however, under the modified cash basis of 
accounting, the City records these items as expenditures when paid. 

 
E. Fund Accounting 
 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34 defines major funds and 
requires that the City’s major governmental type funds be identified and presented separately in the 
fund financial statements.  Major funds are defined as funds that have either assets, liabilities, 
revenues, or expenditures/expenses equal to or greater than ten percent of their fund-type total and five 
percent of the grand total of all funds.   

 
The City reported the following major governmental funds in the accompanying financial statements: 

 
The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City.  It is used to account for all financial 
resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Special Revenue Fund is used to account for 
the activity in the City’s CDBG revolving loan programs. 
 
The Home Grant Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the activity in the City’s HOME 
revolving loan programs. 
 
The Local Transit Authority Special Revenue Fund is used to account for transportation projects 
funded through the Measure D funding.  Measure D is Imperial County’s local ½ cent sales tax 
transportation Measure.  95% of the funds from Measure D go directly to the cities and the County to 
pay for critical road repair projects.  The other 5% is set aside for regional projects. 
 
The Local Transportation Special Revenue Fund is used to account for local transportation projects 
which are funded in whole or in part through State and/or Federal funding sources specific to the 
transportation projects(s).  
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NOTE 1 – REPORTING ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
E. Fund Accounting (Continued) 

 
The City reported the following major proprietary funds:  
 
The Water Fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the City’s water treatment 
and distribution system. Revenues are primarily user charges. Rates are set periodically by the City 
Council.  

 
The Sewer Fund is used to account for the operation and maintenance of the City’s wastewater 
treatment plant and collection facilities. 
 
The Solid Waste Fund is used to account for residential and commercial garbage collection and 
disposal. 

 
 Additionally, the City reported the following fund type:  

 
The Private-Purpose Trust Funds are used to account for the activities of the Successor Agency 
(former Redevelopment Agency).  

 
F.   Basis of Accounting 
 

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are recognized in the 
accounts and reported in the financial statements.  Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the 
measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied. 

 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require all governmental 
funds to use the modified accrual basis of accounting and all proprietary fund types to use the accrual 
basis of accounting.  The City of Holtville uses the modified cash basis of accounting for all fund 
types. 

 
The modified cash basis of accounting recognizes all monies received as revenues at the time of receipt 
and all amounts paid as expenditures at the time of payment with the exception of the following: 

 
1. Long-term notes and loans receivable are set up as assets and unearned revenue and note/loan 

payments received by the City are recorded as reductions of the asset and liability and program 
income when received. 

 
2. Long term payables are set up as liabilities in the proprietary funds.  Principal payments are 

recorded as reductions of the liabilities when made. 
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NOTE 1 – REPORTING ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
G.   Budgets and Budgetary Accounting 
 

The City is required by its municipal code to adopt an annual budget on or before June 30, which is the 
end of its fiscal year, for the ensuing fiscal year.  From the effective date of the budget, the amounts 
stated as proposed expenditures become appropriations to the various City departments. The City 
Council may amend the budget by motion during each fiscal year. The City Manager is authorized to 
transfer funds from one major expenditure category to another within the same department and fund.  
Any revisions that alter the total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council. 

 
All appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year to the extent that they have not been expended.   

 
Budgeted revenue and expenditure amounts shown represent the City's originally-adopted budget 
adjusted for supplemental revenues and appropriations during the course of the fiscal year.  Budget 
amounts, as adjusted, reported for the governmental funds of the City are adopted on the modified cash 
basis of accounting which is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America.   
 
Budgets were not adopted for the Community Development Block Grant Fund, Home Grant Fund, 
FEMA Water Tank Fund, Homeland Security Fund, FEMA Fund, Façade Improvement Program 
Fund, CDBG Grant Sewer Study Fund or Business Assistance Loan Fund. 

 
H.   Encumbrances 
 

Encumbrances represent commitments related to unperformed contracts for goods or services.  
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments for the 
expenditure of resources are recorded to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is not 
utilized by the City. 

 
I. Investments 
 

Investments are stated at fair value. The City has adopted an investment policy which provides a 
means for investing the public funds held by the City.  These investments are also allowed by the 
California Government Code. 

 
J.   Capital Assets 

 
Capital assets in the proprietary funds are expensed when paid.  This practice is contrary to accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 
The City does not maintain a complete accounting of capital assets.  This practice is contrary to 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 
K.   Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include restricted and 
unrestricted cash. 
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NOTE 1 – REPORTING ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
L. Compensated Absences 
 

Cash compensation for accrued vacation is generally not payable until the employee terminates 
employment with the City. Sick leave is only payable to management employees with ten years of 
service with the City.  Cash compensation for unused sick leave is payable to a management employee 
only upon termination of employment with the City and the employee is compensated 25% of their 
accrued sick leave.   

 
M. Interfund Transactions 
 

Quasi-external transactions are accounted for as revenues and expenditures/expenses.  Transactions 
that constitute reimbursements to a fund for expenditures/expenses initially made from it that are 
properly applicable to another fund, are recorded as expenditures/expenses in the reimbursing fund and 
as reductions of expenditures/expenses in the fund that is reimbursed. 

 
All other interfund transactions, except quasi-external transactions and reimbursements, are reported as 
transfers.   
 

N. Use of Estimates 
 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with a comprehensive basis of accounting other 
than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, 
actual results could differ from those estimates. 

 
O. Net Position and Fund Balance 

 
In the Government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, net position is 
reported in three categories: net investment in capital assets; restricted net position; and unrestricted 
net position.  Restricted net position represent net position restricted by parties outside of the City 
(such as creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, and regulations of other governments) and include 
unspent proceeds of bonds issued to acquire or construct capital assets.  All other net position is 
considered unrestricted. 
 
At June 30, 2016, the City had recorded restricted net position in the Governmental Activities and 
Business-type Activities as follows: 
 

Governmental 
Activities

Business-type 
Activities

Restricted for:
Debt service -$                644,793$        
Community development 1,555,076       
HOME grant program 1,203,509       
Transportation 881,060          
Streets and roads 439,169          

Total Restricted 4,078,814$      644,793$        
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NOTE 1 – REPORTING ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 

O. Net Position and Fund Balance (Continued) 
 

Fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the City is 
bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources in the governmental funds.  The 
classifications are as follows: 

 

Nonspendable - The nonspendable fund balance category includes amounts that cannot be spent because they 
are not in spendable form, or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The “not in spendable 
form” criterion includes items that are not expected to be converted to cash. It also includes the long-term 
amount of interfund loans. 
 

Restricted - Fund balance is reported as restricted when constraints placed on the use of resources are either 
externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations 
of other governments or is imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation (City 
ordinances). 
 

Enabling legislation authorizes the City to assess, levy, charge, or otherwise mandate payment of resources 
(from external resource providers) and includes a legally enforceable requirement that those resources be used 
only for the specific purposes stipulated in the legislation. Legal enforceability means that the City can be 
compelled by an external party-such as citizens, public interest groups, or the judiciary to use resources created 
by enabling legislation only for the purposes specified by the legislation. 
 

Committed - The committed fund balance classification includes amounts that can be used only for the specific 
purposes imposed by formal action (ordinance or resolution) of City Council. Those committed amounts 
cannot be used for any other purpose unless City Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the 
same type of action (ordinance or resolution) it employed to previously commit those amounts. In contrast to 
fund balance that is restricted by enabling legislation, committed fund balance classification may be 
redeployed for other purposes with appropriate due process.  Constraints imposed on the use of committed 
amounts are imposed by City Council, separate from the authorization to raise the underlying revenue; 
therefore, compliance with these constraints are not considered to be legally enforceable. Committed fund 
balance also incorporates contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources in the fund have been 
specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. 
 

Assigned - Amounts in the assigned fund balance classification are intended to be used by the City for specific 
purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. In governmental funds other 
than the General Fund, assigned fund balance represents the remaining amount that is not restricted or 
committed. In the General Fund, assigned amounts represent intended uses established by City Council or a 
City official delegated that authority by City ordinance. 
 

Unassigned - Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all 
spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other governmental funds, the unassigned 
classification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting from overspending for specific purposes for 
which amounts had been restricted, committed, or assigned. 
 

The City applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which either 
restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigned) amounts are available. 
 

Similarly, within unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts are reduced first followed by assigned, and 
then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the 
unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used. 
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NOTE 1 – REPORTING ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

 
O. Net Position and Fund Balance (Continued) 
 

The constraints placed on fund balance for the major governmental funds and all other governmental funds at 
June 30, 2016 are as follows: 
 

Fund Balances General Fund

Community 
Development Block 

Grant Special Revenue 
Fund

Home Grant 
Special Revenue 

Fund

Local Transit 
Authority Special 

Revenue Fund
Local Transportation 

Special Revenue Fund
Nonmajor 

Governmental Funds Total 
Nonspendable:
   Prepaids 12,400$              106,705$                    -$                    -$                            -$                            -$                        119,105$                
Total Nonspendable 12,400                106,705                      119,105                  
Restricted for:

Community Development 481,599                      209                     481,808                  
Transportation 881,060                      881,060                  
Streets and Roads 439,169                   439,169                  

Total Restricted                        481,599                      209                     881,060                                                     439,169                   1,802,037               
Unassigned 1,628,118           (352,309)                     (23,799)                   1,252,010               
Total Fund Balances 1,640,518$         588,304$                    209$                   881,060$                    (352,309)$                   415,370$                 3,173,152$             

P. New Accounting Pronouncement 
  

 Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 72 
 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the City implemented Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Applications. This Statement is 
effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2015. The objective of this Statement is to improve 
financial reporting by clarifying the definition of fair value for financial reporting purposes, 
establishing general principles for measuring fair value, providing additional fair value application 
guidance, and enhancing disclosures about fair value measurements. Implementation of GASB 
Statement No. 72 did have an impact on the City’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2016, see Note 4. 
 

Q. Future Accounting Pronouncements 
 

GASB Statements listed below will be implemented in future financial statements: 
 

Statement No. 74 "Financial Reporting for Postemployment 
Benefits Plans Other Than Pension Plans"

The provision of this statement are effective for 
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2016.

Statement No. 75 "Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than 
Pensions"

The provision of this statement are effective for 
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2017.

Statement No. 77 "Tax Abatement Disclosures" The provision of this statement are effective for 
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015.

Statement No. 78 "Pensions Provided through Certain 
Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit 
Pension Plans"

The provision of this statement are effective for 
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015.

Statement No. 79 "Certain External Investment Pools and 
Pool Participants"

The provision of this statement are effective for 
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015.
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NOTE 1 – REPORTING ENTITY AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
 
Q. Future Accounting Pronouncements (Continued) 

 
GASB Statements listed below will be implemented in future financial statements (continued): 

  
Statement No. 80 "Blending Requirements for Certain 

Component Units-an amendment of 
GASB Statement No. 14" 

The provision of this statement are effective for 
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015.

Statement No. 81 "Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements" The provision of this statement are effective for 
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016.

Statement No. 82 "Pension Issues-an amendment of GASB 
Statements No. 67, No. 68, and No. 73"

The provision of this statement are effective for 
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017.

 
 
R. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources 

 
Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 65 the City recognizes deferred outflows of resources. A deferred 
outflow of resources is defined as a consumption of net position by the government that is applicable 
to a future reporting period.  Refer to Note 14 for a detailed listing of the deferred inflows of resources 
that the City has recognized. 
 
Pursuant to GASB Statement No. 65 the City recognizes deferred inflows of resources. A deferred 
inflow of resources is defined as an acquisition of fund balance by the government that is applicable to 
a future reporting period.  Refer to Note 7 for a detailed listing of the deferred inflows of resources that 
the City has recognized. 
 

NOTE 2 – RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
Explanation of certain differences between the governmental funds balance sheet and the government-wide 
statement of net position.  
 
The governmental funds balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance of total governmental 
funds and net position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of net position.  
 
One element of the reconciliation explains that “long-term liabilities” are not due and payable in the current 
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. The details of this difference are as follows: 

 
Long-Term Debt Obligations
Compensated Absences 60,498$          
Claims Payable 231,286         

291,784$        
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NOTE 3 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
Deficit Fund Balances and Net Position 
 
Deficit net position of $4,117,176, $2,528,624, and $80,990 exist in the Water Fund, Sewer Fund, and Solid 
Waste Fund, respectively.  These deficits are due to the City not capitalizing capital outlay expenses in the 
Enterprise Funds.  There are also deficit fund balances of $352,309, $2,661, $13,461, and $7,677 in the Local 
Transportation Special Revenue Fund, Façade Improvement Program Special Revenue Fund, CDBG Grant 
Sewer Study Special Revenue Fund, and Business Assistance Loan Special Revenue Fund.  The deficits are 
due to the City paying expenditures in advance of receiving revenues.  The majority of these deficits are going 
to be repaid once reimbursements are received from the grantor, and if there are any outstanding deficits after 
the repayments, the General Fund should cover these deficits when the fund is closed out. 
 
Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations 
 

Excess of expenditures over appropriations in departments/cost centers of individual funds are as 
follows: 
 

APPROPRIATIONS EXPENDITURES EXCESS
Major Funds:

General:
General government 766,251$                  996,658$             230,407$       
Public safety 1,412,821                1,485,276           72,455           
Public works 355,886                   368,305              12,419           

FUND

 
 
NOTE 4 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Cash and investments are reported as follows in the Statement of Net Position Arising from Cash Transactions: 
 

  

Statement of Net Position:
Cash and investments 5,031,877$     
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 320,750         
Restricted cash and investments 324,043         

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position: 
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 271,791         
Restricted cash and investments 2,848,480      

   Total 8,796,941$     

Cash and investments held by the City at June 30, 2016 consisted of the following:

Cash on hand 100$                
Cash deposits 4,730,773      
Investments 4,066,068      

   Total 8,796,941$     
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NOTE 4 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy  
 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California Government 
Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more restrictive).  The table also identifies certain provisions of 
the California Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more restrictive) that address interest 
rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.  This table does not address investments of debt proceeds 
held by bond trustee that are governed by the provisions of debt agreements of the City, rather than the general 
provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment policy. 
 

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment
Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer

Local Agency Investment Fund (State Pool) N/A None $50 million
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Government Agency Issues 5 years None None
Insured Deposits with Banks and Savings
    and Loans N/A None 15%
Repurchase Agreements 90 days None 15%
Bankers Acceptance (must be dollar
     denominated) 9 months 40% 15%
Commercial Paper 6 months 15% 15%
Negotiable Time Certificates of Deposit 5 years 25% 15%
Medium Term Corporate Notes 5 years 30% 10%
Time deposits N/A 25% 15%

Authorized
Investment Type

 
 
Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements 
  
Investment of debt proceeds held by bond trustees are governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather 
than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s investment policy.  The table 
below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by bond trustee. The table also 
identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and 
concentration of credit risk. 
 

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage Investment
Maturity of Portfolio in One Issuer

U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (State Pool) N/A None $50 million
Banker's Acceptances 270 days 40% 15%
Commercial Paper 180 days 15% 15%
Guaranteed Investment Contracts N/A None None
Money Market Accounts N/A None None

Authorized
Investment Type
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NOTE 4 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk 
  
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to 
changes in market interest rates.  One of the ways that the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by 
purchasing a combination of shorter term and longer term investments and by timing cash flows from 
maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is maturing or coming close to maturity evenly over time as 
necessary to provide the cash flows and liquidity needed for operations. 

 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s investments (including investments held by 
bond trustees) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution 
of the City’s investments by maturity:  
 

12 Months 13 to 24 25-36 37-48 More Than
Totals Or Less Months Months Months 48 Months

State Investment Pool 102$             102$            -$           -$            -$          -$         
Money Market Funds 531,724        531,724                   
Certificates of Deposit 2,744,462     247,513      747,420    1,240,689   252,276     256,564    
Held by Bond trustees:

Money Market Funds 789,780        789,780      
4,066,068$   1,569,119$  747,420$   1,240,689$  252,276$   256,564$  

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

Investment Type

 
Investments with Fair Values Highly Sensitive to Interest Rate Fluctuations 
 

The City has no investments (including investments held by bond trustees) that are highly sensitive to interest 
rate fluctuations (to a greater degree than already indicated in the information provided above).  
 

Disclosures Relating to Credit Risk 
 

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the 
investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating 
organization.  Presented below is the minimum rating required by (where applicable) the California 
Government Code, the City’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of fiscal year end 
for each investment type. 
 

Minimum Exempt
Legal From Not

Amount Rating Disclosure AAA AA A Rated

State Investment Pool 102$           N/A -$       -$           -$            -$             102$           
Money Market Funds 531,724      N/A 531,724     
Certificates of Deposit 2,744,462   N/A 246,678     1,253,465    1,244,319  
Held by bond trustees:

Money Market Funds 789,780      N/A 789,780    
     Total 4,066,068$ -$       789,780$   246,678$    1,253,465$  1,776,145$ 

Rating as of Fiscal Year End

Investment Type
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NOTE 4 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer 
beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code.  There was no investment in any one issuer (other 
than money market funds and external investment pools) that represents 5% or more of total City investments. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, 
a government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are 
in the possession of an outside party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of 
the failure of the counterparty (e.g. broker-dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the 
value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party.  The California 
Government Code and the City’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements that would 
limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following provision for 
deposits. The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure deposits made by state or 
local governmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository regulated 
under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit).  The fair value of the pledged securities in the 
collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by the public agencies.  California law 
also allows financial institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a 
value of 150% of the secured public deposits. 
 
As of June 30, 2016, $4,059,750 of the City’s deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal 
depository insurance limits were held in collateralized accounts. 
 
Investment in State Investment Pool 
 
The City is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) that is regulated by the 
California Government Code under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California.  The fair value of 
the City’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon 
the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the 
amortized cost of the portfolio).  The balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records 
maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an amortized cost basis. 
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NOTE 4 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

 
Fair Value Measurement 
 

The City categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles. These principles recognize a three-tiered fair value 
hierarchy, as follows: 

 
    Level 1: Investments reflect prices quoted in active markets; 
  Level 2: Investments reflect prices that are based on a similar observable asset either directly 

or indirectly, which may include inputs in markets that are not considered active; and, 
    Level 3: Investments reflect prices based upon unobservable sources. 

 
The City has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2016 

 

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets Significant Other Significant Other

for Identical Observable Unobservable
Investment by Fair Value Total Assets (Level 1) Inputs (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3)
Debt Securities

Certificates of Deposit 2,744,462$  2,744,462$          -$                      -$                     
     Total 2,744,462$  2,744,462$          -$                      -$                     

Fair Value Measurement Using

 
 
NOTE 5 – LOANS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE 
 
Program loans receivable represent Housing Rehabilitation and Business Program loans, which were assigned 
to the City.  The loans are secured by deeds of trust, which attach to the property until title to the property is 
transferred.  Most of these loans are deferred, but there are a few that require monthly payments.  Interest rates 
vary from 0% to 4%.  The housing rehabilitation loans receivable total is $2,269,166 as of June 30, 2016. 
$12,400 is recorded in the General Fund for one of these loans receivable.  
 
The City loaned Business Program loans to various business owners within the City.  As of June 30, 2016, 
there is only one Business Program loan still outstanding.  This loan is secured by a deed of trust.  The terms of 
the loan call for monthly payments with an interest rate of 6%.  The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2016 is 
$20,011. 
 
On September 1, 2003, the City loaned Holtville Gardens, L.P. $3,000,000 as part of the State of California 
HOME Investment Partnership Program to aid in the development and construction of an 81-unit apartment 
complex located at 950 Holt Avenue in the City of Holtville.    
 
The terms of the loan call for Holtville Gardens to make annual payments in the amount of 50% of the 
“Distributable Cash Flow” from the project within ninety (90) days following the end of each calendar year, 
with respect to the preceding year.   The entire amount of the outstanding principal, with the accrued interest at 
1%, shall be due and payable in fifty-five (55) years from September 1, 2003.  The outstanding balance as of 
June 30, 2016 is $3,376,904. The fund financial statements reflect deferred revenue in the amount of 
$3,376,904 to offset this note receivable, which includes interest. On the statement of net position the City has 
set up an allowance of $3,376,904 as of June 30, 2016.  
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NOTE 5 – LOANS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED) 
 
On May 9, 2005, the former Redevelopment Agency Low and Moderate Income Housing Fund loaned 
Holtville Gardens, L.P. $200,000 to aid in the development and construction of an 81-unit apartment complex 
located at 950 Holt Avenue in the city of Holtville.  The terms of the loan call for Holtville Gardens to make 
annual payments in the amount of 50% of the Distributable Cash Flow” from the project within ninety (90) 
days following the end of each calendar year, with respect to the preceding year.  The entire amount of the 
outstanding principal, with the accrued interest at 5%, shall be due and payable in full thirty (30) years from 
May 9, 2005.  The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2016 was $ 310,000.  
 
Total program loans receivable outstanding at June 30, 2016 is $5,976,081, and the fund financial statements 
reflect deferred inflows of resources of $5,856,976 to offset the deferred portion of these loans receivable. 
 
NOTE 6 – PROPERTY TAXES 
           
Property taxes in the State of California are administered for all local agencies at the county level, and consist 
of secured, unsecured, and utility tax rolls.  The following is a summary of major policies and practices relating 
to property taxes. 
           
Property Valuations - are established by the Assessor of the County of Imperial for the secured and unsecured 
property tax rolls; the utility property tax roll is valued by the State Board of Equalization.  Under the 
provisions of Article XIIIA of the State Constitution (Proposition 13 adopted by the voters on June 6, 1978), 
properties are assessed at 100% of full value.  From this base assessment, subsequent annual increases in 
valuation are limited to a maximum of 2%.  However, increases to full value are allowed for property 
improvements or upon change in ownership.  Personal property is excluded from these limitations, and is 
subject to annual reappraisal. 
 
Tax Levies - are limited to 1% of full value which results in a tax rate of $1.00 per $100 assessed valuation, 
under the provisions of Proposition 13.  Tax rates for voter-approved indebtedness are excluded from this 
limitation. 
 
Tax Levy Dates - are attached annually on January 1 preceding the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.  
The fiscal year begins July 1 and ends on June 30 of the following year.  Taxes are levied on both real and 
unsecured personal property as it exists at that time.  Liens against real estate, as well as the tax on personal 
property, are not relieved by subsequent renewal or change in ownership. 
           
Tax Collections - are the responsibility of the county tax collector.  Taxes and assessments on secured and 
utility rolls which constitute a lien against the property, may be paid in two installments:  the first is due on 
November 1 of the fiscal year and is delinquent if not paid by December 10; and the second is due on March 1 
of the fiscal year and is delinquent if not paid by April 10.  Unsecured personal property taxes do not constitute 
a lien against real property unless the taxes become delinquent. Payment must be made in one installment, 
which is delinquent if not paid by August 31 of the fiscal year.  Significant penalties are imposed by the county 
for late payments.  
 
Tax Levy Apportionments - Due to the nature of the City-wide maximum levy, it is not possible to identify 
general purpose tax rates for specific entities.  Under state legislation adopted subsequent to the passage of 
Proposition 13, apportionments to local agencies are made by the county auditor-controller based primarily on 
the ratio that each agency represented of the total City-wide levy for the three years prior to fiscal year 1979. 
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NOTE 6 – PROPERTY TAXES (CONTINUED) 
 
Property Tax Administration Fees - The State of California FY 90-91 Budget Act authorized counties to 
collect an administrative fee for collection and distribution of property taxes.  Property taxes are recorded net 
of administrative fees withheld during the fiscal year. 

 
NOTE 7 – DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES  
 
At June 30, 2016, components of deferred inflows of resources – note receivable reported in the fund financial 
statements were $966,772 and $4,580,204 in the Community Development Block Grant Special Revenue Fund 
and Home Grant Special Revenue Fund, respectively.  
 
NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
A. Business-type Activities 
 

1999 Water Revenue Refunding Bonds  
 
On February 1, 1999, the Holtville Financing Authority issued $4,380,000 of 1999 Revenue Refunding 
Bonds for the purpose of enabling the Authority to defease the 1991 Revenue Bonds, to fund a reserve 
account for the bonds, and to pay bond issuance costs. 
 
The bonds are payable from revenues consisting primarily of installment payments, which amounts are 
designed to be sufficient in both time and amount to pay, when due, the principal and interest payable 
with respect to the bonds.  In the Installment Sale Agreement, the City covenants to fix, prescribe, 
revise, and collect rates, fees, and charges for the service and facilities furnished by the Water 
Enterprise during each fiscal year, which are at least sufficient to pay for all operation and maintenance 
costs of the Water Enterprise, the installment payments, and amounts required to restore the balance in 
the bond reserve account to its reserve requirement. 

 
The 1999 Water Refunding Bonds are serviced by a lien on the gross revenues from water service 
charges and are not subject to the limit on bonded debt.  
 
The refunding bond issue matures from December 1, 2002 to December 1, 2021 with interest rates 
from 3.75% to 5.00%.   The future debt service requirements on the 1999 series Water Revenue 
Refunding Bonds are: 

 
Fiscal Year 

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2017 240,000$       74,750$         314,750$        
2018 250,000         62,500          312,500         
2019 260,000         49,750          309,750         
2020 275,000         36,375          311,375         
2021 285,000         22,375          307,375         
2022 305,000         7,625            312,625         

1,615,000$    253,375$       1,868,375$     
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
A. Business-type Activities (Continued) 

 
2009A and 2009B Water Revenue Bonds (USDA) 
 
On July 1, 2009, the Holtville Public Financing Authority issued Water Revenue Bonds (USDA), 
Series A, in the amount of $3,401,000 and Water Revenue Bonds (USDA), Series B, in the amount of 
$833,000.   
 
The bonds are payable from monies to be derived from installment payments, to be made by the City 
from net revenues of the water system, which amounts are designed to be sufficient in both time and 
amount to pay, when due, the principal and interest payable with respect to the bonds.  In the 
Installment Sale Agreement, the City covenants to fix, prescribe, revise, and collect rates, fees, and 
charges for the service and facilities furnished by the Water Enterprise during each fiscal year, which 
are at least sufficient to pay for all operation and maintenance costs of the Water Enterprise and the 
installment payments. 

 
The 2009A and 2009B Water Revenue Bonds are serviced by a lien on the gross revenues from water 
service charges and are not subject to the limit on bonded debt. 
 
The 2009A bond issue matures each July 1 beginning in 2010 with final maturity in the fiscal year 
2049.  The interest rate is 4.25%.  Future minimum debt service payments are as follows: 

 
Fiscal Year 

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2017 43,000$       134,428$     177,428$        
2018 45,000         132,188      177,188         
2019 47,000         130,233      177,233         
2020 49,000         128,193      177,193         
2021 51,000         126,416      177,416         

2022-2026 290,000       595,442      885,442         
2027-2031 357,000       526,912      883,912         
2032-2036 440,000       442,436      882,436         
2037-2041 543,000       338,482      881,482         
2042-2046 668,000       209,941      877,941         
2047-2050 643,000       56,005        699,005         

3,176,000$  2,820,676$  5,996,676$     

 
The 2009B bond issue matures each July 1 beginning in 2010 with final maturity in the fiscal year 
2026.  The interest rate is 2.625%.  Future minimum debt service payments are as follows: 

 
Fiscal Year 

Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2017 14,000$       3,826$         17,826$          
2018 14,000         3,448          17,448           
2019 14,000         3,080          17,080           
2020 15,000         2,699          17,699           
2021 15,000         2,313          17,313           

2022-2026 80,399         5,210          85,609           

152,399$     20,576$       172,975$        
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
 
A. Business-type Activities (Continued) 

 
2013 Sewer Revenue Bonds  
 
On December 9, 2013, the City issued $4,500,000 of 2013 Sewer Revenue Bonds (USDA) for the 
purpose of refunding the 2003 Sewer Revenue Bonds and 2011 Subordinate Sewer Revenue Notes, to 
provide a portion of the financing cost of the Outfall Main Project, and pay the costs of issuance. The 
outstanding principal balance at June 30, 2016 is $4,346,000. 
 
The bonds are payable from monies to be derived from installment payments, to be made by the City 
from net revenues of the sewer system, which amounts are designed to be sufficient in both time and 
amount to pay, when due, the principal and interest payable with respect to the bonds.  In the 
Installment Sale Agreement, the City covenants to fix, prescribe, revise, and collect rates, fees, and 
charges for the service and facilities furnished by the Sewer Enterprise during each fiscal year, which 
are at least sufficient to pay for all operation and maintenance costs of the Sewer Enterprise and the 
installment payments. 

 
The 2013 Sewer Revenue Bonds are serviced by a lien on the gross revenues from sewer service 
charges and are not subject to the limit on bonded debt. 
  
Interest on the 2013 Sewer Revenue Bonds is 2% and repayments commence December 1, 2014 with 
final maturity on December 1, 2052. Future minimum debt service payments are as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2017 80,000$       86,120$       166,120$        
2018 82,000         84,500        166,500         
2019 83,500         82,845        166,345         
2020 85,000         81,160        166,160         
2021 87,000         79,440        166,440         

2022-2026 461,250       370,160      831,410         
2027-2031 510,000       321,630      831,630         
2032-2036 563,000       268,030      831,030         
2037-2041 623,250       208,773      832,023         
2042-2046 688,000       143,220      831,220         
2047-2051 760,000       70,858        830,858         
2052-2053 323,000       6,480          329,480         

4,346,000$  1,803,216$  6,149,216$     
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 
  
B. The following is a summary of Long-Term Debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016: 
 
Governmental activities Balance Balance Due in

July 1, 2015 Additions Deletions June 30, 2016 one year

Compensated absences 42,237$        37,268$        19,007$        60,498$          27,224$     
Claims payable 131,439        467,683       367,836       231,286         

173,676$      504,951$      386,843$      291,784$        27,224$     

Business-type activities

Compensated absences 73,399$        9,121$          7,340$          75,180$          7,518$       
1999 Water Revenue
  Refunding Bonds 1,840,000     225,000       1,615,000      240,000     
2009A Water Revenue Bonds 3,217,000     41,000         3,176,000      43,000       
2009B Water Revenue Bonds 165,399        13,000         152,399         14,000       
2013 Sewer Revenue Bonds 4,425,000     79,000         4,346,000      80,000       

9,720,798$   9,121$          365,340$      9,364,579$     384,518$   
 

 

NOTE 9 – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 
 
Current interfund balances arise in the normal course of business and are expected to be repaid shortly after the 
end of the fiscal year.  Normally, these balances occur as a result of expenditures/ expenses being paid prior to 
receiving revenue which causes a deficit in pooled cash. 
 

A. Due to/from other funds 
 

Receivables and payables between funds are classified as due from or due to other funds.  Due from and 
due to other funds are usually a result of a shortfall of pooled cash within the respective fund. 
 

             

Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables

Governmental Funds:
Major Funds:

General 376,108$       43,249$         
Local Transportation 352,309        

Nonmajor Funds:
Special Revenue Funds:

Façade Improvement Program 2,661             
CDBG Grant Sewer Study 13,461          
Business Assistance Loan 7,677             

Proprietary Funds:
Major Funds:

Water 43,249          
Sewer 80,990          
Solid Waste 80,990          

500,347$       500,347$       
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NOTE 9 – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) 

 
B. Interfund transfers 

 
Transfers are indicative of funding for capital projects, lease payments or debt service, reimbursement 
of various City operations and re-allocations of special revenues.  

 
Transfers for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 were as follows: 

 
Transfers In Transfers Out

Governmental Funds:
Major Funds:

General 550,564$       42,956$          
Home Grant 2                   
Local Transit Authority 40,025          181,614         
Local Tranportation 31,614          

Nonmajor Funds:
Special Revenue Funds:
   Gas Tax 22,597          150,000         
   Homeland Security 9,414            
   FEMA 10,943          
   Prop 42 Transportation 40,589           

Proprietary Funds:
Major Funds:

Water 25,000           
Sewer 225,000         

665,159$       665,159$        
 

 

NOTE 10 – SELF-FUNDED INSURANCE COVERAGE 
 
The City provides for workers' compensation and liability insurance through a self-funded joint powers agency, 
Public Entity Risk Management Authority (PERMA), formerly Coachella Valley Joint Powers Insurance 
Authority.  The PERMA accounts are separately maintained for each participant. The City’s share of retained 
earnings of the liability fund is $0 and $603,040 for the workers' compensation fund. 
 
Summary financial information for the funds of the PERMA for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 is as 
follows: 
 

Workers'
Compensation Liability

Total assets 19,178,987$   22,377,077$  
Total liabilities 17,460,121    4,755,927     
Net position 1,718,866      17,621,150   
Total revenues 2,945,293      6,334,386     
Total expenditures 3,269,617      4,949,224     
Net increase (decrease) in net position (324,324)        1,385,162     
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NOTE 10 – SELF-FUNDED INSURANCE COVERAGE (CONTINUED) 
 
Claims, expenditures, and liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of 
that loss can be reasonably estimated.  Those losses do include an estimate of claims that have been incurred 
but not reported.  At June 30, 2016, the amount of these liabilities was $231,286.  This liability is the City's 
best estimate based on available information.   
 
The separate financial statements of PERMA may be obtained by writing: PERMA, 77-670 Springfield Lane, 
Suite 1A, Palm Desert, CA, 92211, or phone (760) 360-3264. 
 
NOTE 11 – DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN 
 
The City of Holtville has a deferred compensation plan for its employees in accordance with Internal Revenue 
Code Section 457.  Plan participation is available to substantially all employees and includes that portion of an 
employee's regular compensation designated by the employee for deferral up to a maximum of $18,000 or 
one-third of a participant's annual compensation, whichever is lesser.  The compensation which is deferred is 
not available to employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency. 
 
NOTE 12 – PENSION TRUST FUND - RETIREMENT PLAN 
 
The City converted its Money Purchase Plan to a Profit Sharing Plan.  The Plan is a "salary reduction plan" 
under Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
 
The plan provides for mandatory employee contributions of 3 percent of compensation.  The City's 
contributions are 10 percent of covered compensation.  Employees are fully vested at 7 years of service. 
 
NOTE 13 – CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 
 
The City has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the 
grantor agencies.  Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under terms of the grants, it 
is believed that any required reimbursements will not be material. 
 
The City is involved in pending lawsuits of a nature common to many similar jurisdictions. City management 
estimates the potential claims against the City, not covered by insurance, will be immaterial to the financial 
statements.  
 
Proposition 218, which was approved by the voters in November 1996, will regulate the City’s ability to 
impose, increase, and extend taxes, assessments, and fees.  Any new, increased, or extended taxes, 
assessments, and fees subject to the provisions of Proposition 218 require voter approval before they can be 
implemented.  Additionally, Proposition 218 provides that these taxes, assessments, and fees are subject to the 
voter initiative process and may be rescinded in the future by voters.  Therefore, the City’s ability to finance 
the services for which the taxes, assessments, and fees were imposed may be significantly impaired.  At this 
time, it is uncertain how Proposition 218 will affect the City’s ability to maintain or increase the revenue from 
taxes, assessments, and fees. 
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NOTE 13 – CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
On January 20, 2011, a Settlement Agreement and Stipulation for entry of Administrative Civil Liability Order 
(Order) was entered into by and between the Regional Water Quality Control Board (Board) and the City of 
Holtville (City).  The Order was for a total amount of $79,828, which included $63,000 in mandatory 
minimum penalties, $10,828 in discretionary civil liabilities, and staff costs of $6,000. The City paid $16,828 
in April 2011.  Continued communication between the Board and the City, along with meeting milestones 
toward completion, will allow for the remaining $63,000 to be suspended pending completion of the 
Compliance Project by December 31, 2016.   
 
Due to a lawsuit against the City, the case was affirmed in favor of the City, except for an award of attorney 
fees and costs against the City, in favor of another defendant. The judgement is in the amount of $323,350 as 
of June 14, 2016. The City’s motion to pay in installments over a 10 year period will be heard on February 16, 
2017.  
 
NOTE 14 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF FORMER REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY:  
 
On December 29, 2011, the California Supreme Court upheld Assembly Bill 1X 26 (“the Bill”) that provides 
for the dissolution of all redevelopment agencies in the State of California.  This action impacted the reporting 
entity of the City of Holtville that previously had reported a redevelopment agency within the reporting entity 
of the City as a blended component unit.  
 
The Bill provides that upon dissolution of a redevelopment agency, either the city or other unit of local 
government will agree to serve as the “successor agency” to hold the assets units they are distributed to other 
units of state and local government.  On January 9, 2012, the City elected to become the Successor Agency for 
the former Holtville Redevelopment Agency.  
 
After enactment of the law, which occurred on June 28, 2011, redevelopment agencies in the State of 
California cannot enter into new projects, obligations or commitments.  Subject to the control of a newly 
established oversight board, remaining assets can only be used to pay enforceable obligations in existence as 
the date of the dissolution (including the completion of any unfinished projects that were subject to legally 
enforceable contractual commitments).  
 
In future fiscal years, successor agencies will only be allocated revenue in the amount that is necessary to pay 
the estimated annual installment payments on enforceable obligations of former redevelopment agency until all 
enforceable obligations of the prior redevelopment agency have been paid in full and all assets have been 
liquidated.  
 
The Bill directs that State Controller of the State of California to review the propriety of any transfers of assets 
between redevelopment agencies and other public bodies that occurred after January 1, 2011.  If the public 
body that received such transfers is not contractually committed to a third party for the expenditure or 
encumbrance of those assets, the state Controller is required to order the available assets to be transferred to the 
public body designated as the successor agency by the Bill.  
 
In accordance with the timeline set forth in the Bill (as modified by the California Supreme Court on December 
29, 2011) all redevelopment agencies in the State of California were dissolved and ceased to operate as a legal 
entity as of February 1, 2012.  
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NOTE 14 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF FORMER REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY (CONTINUED):  
 
On June 1, 2005, the former Redevelopment Agency loaned the 99 Cent Plus Center $120,000.  The terms of 
the loan call for the 99 Cent Plus Center to make monthly payments of $1,013 for 15 years, with an interest 
rate of 6%.  The outstanding balance as of June 30, 2016 was $46,792.  
 
The former Redevelopment Agency recorded a deferred loss on refunding from the issuance of its 2007 Tax 
Allocation Bonds in the amount of $120,952.  The amortization period is 360 months, and accumulated 
amortization as of June 30, 2016 was $34,943. 
 
As of June 30, 2016, the Successor Agency held land in the amount of $437,894 which consisted of vacant 
land purchased in December 2007 that was originally intended to be sold for future development.  
 
Accounting gains or losses resulting from advance refunding of long-term debt is deferred in accordance with 
GASB Statement No. 23 and No. 65 Deferred amount on bond refunding are amortized over the shorter of the 
life of the new debt or refunded debt. The deferred loss on refunding balance at June 30, 2016 was $86,009 on 
the Statement of Net Position Arising from Cash Transactions for Private-Purpose Trust Fund related to the 
2007 Tax Allocation Bonds. 
 
Long-term debt of the Successor Agency as of June 30, 2016, consisted of the following:  
 
2007 Tax Allocation Bonds - Former Community Development Agency Tax Allocation Bonds  
 
On October 31, 2007, the Redevelopment Agency issued Holtville Redevelopment Project Tax Allocation 
Bonds, Series 2007, in an amount of $6,990,000. 
 
The bonds were issued to (a) refund the 1993 Tax Allocation Bonds, (b) fund a reserve fund, and (c) pay 
certain costs in connection therewith. 
 
The Bonds mature annually each November 1 from 2008 to 2037, in amounts ranging from $125,000 to 
$445,000 and bear interest at rates ranging from 4.00% to 5.40%. Interest is payable semi-annually on May 1 
and November 1.  
 
The Bonds maturing November 1, 2018 and thereafter are subject to redemption prior to their stated maturity, 
at the option of the Agency, as a whole or in part on any date, from any source of available funds on or after 
November 1, 2017 at the principal amount thereof plus accrued interest to the redemption date, without 
premium.   
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NOTE 14 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF FORMER REDEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY (CONTINUED):  
 
2007 Tax Allocation Bonds - Former Community Development Agency Tax Allocation Bonds 
(Continued) 
 
The Bonds maturing on November 1, 2027 and November 1, 2037 are subject to mandatory redemption by lot 
prior to maturity from mandatory sinking account installments on each November 1 at the principal amount 
thereof and accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption, without premium.  In lieu of mandatory 
sinking account redemption, the Indenture permits the purchase of Term Bonds on the open market.  The par 
amount of Term Bonds so purchased by the Agency and surrendered to the Trustee for cancellation in any 12-
month period ending thirty (30) days prior to any November 1 in any year shall be credited toward and shall 
reduce the principal amount of Bonds required to be redeemed on the following November 1. 
 
Annual debt service requirements, to maturity, for the 2007 Tax Allocation Bonds are as follows: 

 
Fiscal Year Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2017 155,000$           309,882$              464,882$             
2018 160,000             302,636                462,636               
2019 165,000             295,038                460,038               
2020 175,000             286,960                461,960               
2021 185,000             278,228                463,228               

2022-2026 1,070,000          1,236,126             2,306,126            
2027-2031 1,380,000          912,895                2,292,895            
2032-2036 1,800,000          487,350                2,287,350            
2037-2038 865,000             47,385                  912,385               

5,955,000$       4,156,500$          10,111,500$        
 

 
Balance Balance Due in

July 1, 2015 Additions Deletions June 30, 2016 one year

2007 Tax Allocation Bonds 6,100,000$   -$              145,000$      5,955,000$    155,000$   

6,100,000$   -$              145,000$      5,955,000$    155,000$   
 

 
NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
On August 8, 2016, the City Council approved a contract with Development Design & Engineering, Inc. for 
construction services for the Ninth Street Palm to Olive Improvement Project, in the amount of $52,765.  
 
On September 12, 2016, the City Council approved a contract with Dynamic Consulting Engineers of Imperial 
for design engineering services for the Sixth Street segment from Melon Avenue to Holt Avenue Project, in the 
amount of $52,392. 
 
On November 14, 2016, the City Council approved an extension for the construction contract with Pacific 
Hydrotech Corporation for construction activities associated the Wastewater Treatment Plant Improvement 
Project, which would result in additional compensation not to exceed $170,000. 
 
 



CITY OF HOLTVILLE 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
June 30, 2016 

45 
 

 
NOTE 15 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
On December 12, 2016, the City Council approved a grant agreement with the Department of the Interior, 
Bureau of Reclamation, to hire contractors for construction services for the Holtville-Alamo River Wetlands 
Construction Project, in the amount of $2,966,000.  
 
NOTE 16 – FINANCIAL CONDITION 
 
The City’s business-type activities net position has a deficit of $6,726,790 at June 30, 2016, which includes 
deficit net position of $4,117,176 in the Water Fund, $2,528,64 in the Sewer Fund, and $80,990 in the Solid 
Waste Fund.   As of June 30, 2016, the City’s General Fund had temporarily loaned $376,108 to other funds 
that had negative cash balances as of June 30, 2016, and the Sewer Fund had temporarily loaned $80,990 to the 
Solid Waste Fund which had negative cash as of June 30, 2016.  Continued deficits and negative cash balances 
can result in a going concern and compliance issues with debt covenants.  Additionally, future capital 
improvements and operations could be affected if continued deficits occur.   
 
NOTE 17 – PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 
 
A prior period adjustment of $300,000 in the Statement of Activities – governmental activities was made, due 
to an understatement of loans receivable in the prior fiscal year.  
 
A prior period adjustment of $2,335,348 was made in the RDA Successor Agency Fund Private-Purpose Trust 
Fund, due to an understatement of restricted cash and investments in the prior fiscal year.  
 
A prior period adjustment of $2,635,348 was made in the RDA Low/Mod Successor Agency Fund Private-
Purpose Trust Fund, due to an overstatement of notes receivable of $30,000 and an overstatement of restricted 
cash and investments in the prior fiscal year.  
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CITY OF HOLTVILLE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Variance
With Final

Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues Collected
Taxes:
Secured and unsecured property taxes 112,700$        112,450$       106,256$      (6,194)$        
Utility users taxes 446,500 446,500 479,255 32,755
Sales and use taxes 370,000 370,000 380,815 10,815
Franchise taxes 94,000 94,000 124,239 30,239
Other taxes 32,100 32,100 32,460 360

Licenses and permits 625 625 6,895 6,270
Fines and penalties 2,800 2,800 1,014 (1,786)
Investment revenue collected 8,300 8,300 9,536 1,236
Intergovernmental revenue collected 858,692 858,692 857,953 (739)
Charges for current services 73,300 73,300 114,211 40,911
Contributions from private-purpose trust fund 125,000 125,000 241,000 116,000
Other revenues collected 36,250 36,250 828,042 791,792

Total revenues collected 2,160,267 2,160,017 3,181,676 1,021,659

Expenditures Paid
General Government:
City council 37,322 37,322 33,885 3,437
City manager 232,904 232,904 241,935 (9,031)
Planning 77,920 77,920 94,282 (16,362)
Engineering 30,000 30,000 9,145 20,855
City clerk 21,665 21,665 18,185 3,480
Finance office 153,615 153,615 148,131 5,484
City treasurer 1,925 1,925 1,463 462
City attorney 80,000 80,000 106,045 (26,045)
Non-departmental 130,900 130,900 123,900 7,000

Total general government 766,251 766,251 776,971 (10,720)

Public Safety:
Police department 818,550 818,550 869,486 (50,936)
Dispatch services 114,100 114,100 101,712 12,388
Animal control 15,772 15,772 16,148 (376)
Fire department 464,399 464,399 497,930 (33,531)

Total public safety 1,412,821 1,412,821 1,485,276 (72,455)

(Continued)
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CITY OF HOLTVILLE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Variance
With Final

Budget
Original Final Positive

Expenditures Paid (continued) Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

Public Works:
Street maintenance 121,767$        121,767$       157,258$      (35,491)$      
Parks maintenance 164,869 164,869 140,268 24,601
Building maintenance 69,250 69,250 70,779 (1,529)

Total public works 355,886 355,886 368,305 (12,419)

Total expenditures paid 2,534,958 2,534,958 2,630,552 (95,594)

Excess of revenues collected 
over (under) expenditures paid (374,691) (374,941) 551,124 926,065

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 550,000 550,000 550,564        564
Transfers out (42,956)         (42,956)

     Total other financing sources (uses) 550,000 550,000 507,608 (42,392)

Net changes in fund balances before
Extraordinary Items 175,309 175,059 1,058,732 883,673

Extraordinary Item
Loss on transfer of assets and liabilities 
to RDA successor trust funds (219,687) (219,687)

Net changes in fund balances 175,309 175,059 839,045 663,986

Fund balance - July 1, 2015 801,473 801,473 801,473

Fund balance - June 30, 2016 976,782$        976,532$       1,640,518$   663,986$      
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CITY OF HOLTVILLE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
LOCAL TRANSIT AUTHORITY SPECIAL REVENUE FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Variance
With Final

Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues Collected:
Investment earnings -$                -$                348$             348$                 
Intergovernmental 475,000          475,000          468,751        (6,249)               

Total revenues collected 475,000          475,000          469,099        (5,901)               

Expenditures Paid:
Capital outlay 154,380          154,380          60                 154,320            

Total expenditures paid 154,380          154,380          60                 154,320            

Excess of revenues collected over
(under) expenditures paid 320,620          320,620          469,039        148,419            

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 40,025          40,025              
Transfers out (150,000)         (150,000)         (181,614)       (31,614)             

Total other financing sources (uses) (150,000)         (150,000)         (141,589)       8,411                

Net change in fund balance 170,620          170,620          327,450        156,830            

Fund balance, July 1, 2015 553,610          553,610          553,610                                 

Fund balance, June 30, 2016 724,230$        724,230$        881,060$      156,830$          
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CITY OF HOLTVILLE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Variance
With Final

Budget
Original Final Positive
Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues Collected:
Intergovernmental 932,587$        932,587$        820,447$      (112,140)$         

Total revenues collected 932,587          932,587          820,447        (112,140)           

Expenditures Paid:
Capital outlay 932,587          932,587          313,265        619,322            

Total expenditures paid 932,587          932,587          313,265        619,322            

Excess of revenues collected over
(under) expenditures paid                                                 507,182        507,182            

Net change in fund balance                                                 538,796        538,796            

Fund balance (deficit), July 1, 2015 (891,105)         (891,105)         (891,105)                                

Fund balance (deficit), June 30, 2016 (891,105)$       (891,105)$       (352,309)$     538,796$          
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CITY OF HOLTVILLE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND FUND BALANCES 
ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS - NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
June 30, 2016

Homeland 
Gas Tax Bikepath Security FEMA

Fund Fund Fund Fund
ASSETS

Cash and investments 412,599$            26,570$              -$                             -$                             
Notes receivable

Total assets 412,599$            26,570$              -$                             -$                             

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Due to other funds -$                    -$                    -$                             -$                             
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities                                                                                                                                 

Fund Balances:
Restricted 412,599 26,570
Unassigned

Total fund balances (deficit) 412,599 26,570

Total liabilities and fund balances 412,599$            26,570$              -$                             -$                             

Special Revenue Funds
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Façade CDBG Business
Improvement Prop 42 Grant Sewer Assistance Low/Mod

Program Transportation Study Loan Housing 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals

-$                             -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                         439,169$                 
310,000 310,000

-$                             -$                      -$                      -$                      310,000$                 749,169$                 

2,661$                         -$                      13,461$                7,677$                  -$                         23,799$                   
310,000                   310,000

2,661                                                        13,461                  7,677                    310,000                   333,799                   

439,169
(2,661) (13,461) (7,677) (23,799)

(2,661) (13,461) (7,677) 415,370

-$                             -$                      -$                      -$                      310,000$                 749,169$                 

Special Revenue Funds
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CITY OF HOLTVILLE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES ARISING FROM CASH
TRANSACTIONS - NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Homeland 
Gas Tax Bikepath Security FEMA

Fund Fund Fund Fund
Revenues Collected:

Taxes and other assessments 137,274$         -$                 -$                       -$                      
Investment earnings 378                 
Intergovernmental 26,930            

Total revenues collected 137,652          26,930                                                                      

Expenditures Paid:
Public safety
Public works
Capital outlay

Total expenditures paid                                                                                                         

Excess of revenues collected 
 over (under) expenditures paid 137,652          26,930                                                                      

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 22,597            9,414                    10,943                  
Transfers out (150,000)         

Total other financing sources (uses) (127,403)                                9,414                    10,943                  

Net changes in fund balances 10,249            26,930            9,414                    10,943                  

Fund balances (deficit), July 1, 2015 402,350          (360)                (9,414)                   (10,943)                 

Prior period adjustments

Fund balances (deficit), 
July 1, 2015, restated 402,350          (360)                (9,414)                   (10,943)                 

Fund balances (deficit), June 30, 2016 412,599$          26,570$            -$                       -$                       

Special Revenue Funds

54



Façade CDBG Business
Improvement Prop 42 Grant Sewer Assistance Low/Mod

Program Transportation Study Loan Housing 
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Totals

-$                       -$                    -$                   -$                   -$                      137,274$     
378              

26,930         

                                                                                                                                        164,582       

                    
                    
                    

                                                                                                                                                            

                                                                                                                                        164,582       

42,954         
(40,589)               (190,589)     

                              (40,589)                                                                                              (147,635)     

                              (40,589)                                                                                              16,947         

(2,661)                    40,589                (13,461)              (7,677)                                           398,423       

                    

(2,661)                    40,589                (13,461)              (7,677)               398,423       

(2,661)$                  -$                    (13,461)$             (7,677)$               -$                      415,370$      

Special Revenue Funds
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CITY OF HOLTVILLE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GAS TAX FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues Collected:
Taxes and other assessments 146,257$        137,274$        (8,983)$          
Investment earnings 800                 378                 (422)               

Total revenues collected 147,057          137,652          (9,405)            

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 22,597            22,597            
Transfers out (150,000)        (150,000)                           

Total other financing sources (uses) (150,000)        (127,403)        22,597            

Net change in fund balance (2,943)            10,249            13,192            

Fund balance, July 1, 2015 402,350          402,350                             
                   

Fund balance, June 30, 2016 399,407$        412,599$        13,192$          
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CITY OF HOLTVILLE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
BIKEPATH FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Revenues Collected:
Intergovernmental 10,000$          26,930$          16,930$          

Total revenues collected 10,000            26,930            16,930            

Net change in fund balance 10,000            26,930            16,930            

Fund balance (deficit), July 1, 2015 (360)               (360)                                  
                   

Fund balance, June 30, 2016 9,640$            26,570$          16,930$          
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CITY OF HOLTVILLE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES COLLECTED, EXPENDITURES PAID, AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
PROP 42 TRANSPORTATION FUND
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

Variance with
Final Budget

Final Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers out -$               (40,589)$        (40,589)$        

Total other financing sources (uses)                    (40,589)          (40,589)          

Net change in fund balance                    (40,589)          (40,589)          

Fund balance, July 1, 2015 40,589            40,589                               

Fund balance, June 30, 2016 40,589$          -$               (40,589)$        
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CITY OF HOLTVILLE
PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS
June 30, 2016

RDA
Low/Mod RDA
Successor Successor

Agency Agency 
Fund Fund Totals

ASSETS
Cash and investments with fiscal agents -$                    469,061$            469,061$            
Restricted cash and investments 2,651,210           2,651,210           
Notes receivable 46,792                46,792                
Capital assets, not being depreciated 437,894              437,894              

Total assets                        3,604,957           3,604,957           

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred loss on bond refunding 86,009                86,009                

Total deferred outflows of resources 86,009                86,009                

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources                        3,690,966           3,690,966           

LIABILITIES

Long-term debt, due within one year 155,000              155,000              
Long-term debt, due in more than one year 5,800,000           5,800,000           

Total liabilities                        5,955,000           5,955,000           

NET POSITION (DEFICIT)

Unrestricted                        (2,264,034)          (2,264,034)          

Total net position (deficit) -$                    (2,264,034)$       (2,264,034)$       
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CITY OF HOLTVILLE
PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRUST FUND
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016

RDA
Low/Mod RDA
Successor Successor
Agency Agency 

Fund Fund Totals
Additions:
Investment revenue -$                    44,093$              44,093$              
Tax and assessments 669,177              669,177              
Forgiveness of uncollectible debt 219,687              219,687              

Total Additions                            932,957              932,957              

Deductions: 
Administration 243,885              243,885              
Interest expense 316,595              316,595              
Amortization expense 4,032                  4,032                  

Total deductions                            564,512              564,512              

Change in net position                            368,445              368,445              

Net Position (Deficit) - July 1, 2015 2,635,348           (4,967,827)          (2,332,479)          

Prior Period Adjustments (2,635,348)          2,335,348           (300,000)             

Net Position - July 1, 2015, Restated                            (2,632,479)          (2,632,479)          

Net Position (Deficit) - June 30, 2016 -$                    (2,264,034)$       (2,264,034)$       
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2016 Text Amendments for Housing Element Objectives 
Planning Staff Report 1 

cc staff report 
Report #1 

To: City Council 

Nicholas Wells, City Manager 

From: Andrea Montano, Assistant Planner 

Date: January 23, 2017 

Project: Proposed Zoning Ordinance Textual Amendments & Density Bonus Provisions 

to Further Housing Element Objectives under 2006-2014 Plan Period  

Summary: 

Project: Textual Amendments to Zoning Ordinance - 

Furthering Housing Element Objectives  

Project Location: All Residential Zones 

Pending Action: Hold Public Hearing & Introduce  Waive First Reading 

of Ordinance 486 

Zoning: All Residential Zones/ Mixed Use Zones 

General Plan: No Changes  

Environmental: Exempt Per Section 15061 (b)(3) 

BACKGROUND AND HISTORY 

The City is in the process of updating the Housing Element as contracted with Michael Baker 

International on August 28, 2015 as part of the General Plan Update.  During their Housing 

Element Review and Update of the 2008 adopted Housing Element, they communicated to the 
City that the State mandates had not been complied with as projected in the 2008 Housing 

Element and that they were necessary in order to find the new Housing Element in compliance by 
the Department of Housing and Community Development. The City’s 2008 Housing Element 

established policies and programs consistent with State law.  Many of these actions were unable 
to be completed during the 2006-2014 performance period due to staffing challenges and budget 

limitations but continue to be a priority prior to adoption of the 2014-2021 Housing Element 

Update which is currently under Public Review.  

The policies and changes were presented to the Planning Commission on December 27, 2016 and 

recommends the amendment to the zoning ordinance and incorporation the Density Bonus 
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Section (See Attachment A- Public Hearing Notice October 17, 2016). The purpose of this staff 

report is to provide an overview of the subject policies and present the textual amendments 
proposed for consistency to City Council. Action items include establishment of a density bonus 

ordinance, increased land use allowances in residential zones to accommodate farmworker 
housing, Single-Room Occupancy, Emergency Shelters, Transitional and Supportive Housing, and 

Group Homes.   

ISSUES FOR DISCUSSION  

Applicable State Policies- State law requires that the City’s Zoning Ordinance give certain 

considerations to a variety of housing types, including Group Homes, Farmworker Housing, Single 
Room Occupancies (SRO’s), Emergency Shelters, Transitional and Supportive Housing, and other 

similar special needs housing types. Although the Holtville Zoning Ordinance informally allows 
these housing types in applicable zones, not all are explicitly specified in the Ordinance by name, 

and not all are allowed by right. Specific State Senate Bills tied to the proposed actions are 

summarized as follows:  

 SB 2 (effective January 1, 2008) was passed by the California Legislature modifying the 

State Housing Element law to require local planning and zoning regulations to facilitate 

homeless shelters. Specifically, SB 2 requires all cities and counties to provide at least 
one zoning category in which emergency shelters can be located without discretionary 

approval from the local government. State Law (SB 2) further requires that Transitional 

Housing and Supportive Housing only be subject to those restrictions that apply to other 
residential uses of the same type in the same zone and that group care facilities for six or 

fewer individuals be allowed by right in all residential zones  

 SB 1545 (effective-January 1, 2000) was passed by the State Legislature to address 

farmworkers housing needs. SB 1545 additionally requires that employee/farmworker 

housing land uses be treated in the same manner as any other agricultural activity and 
agricultural use in an agricultural zone, without necessitating any other discretionary 

zoning clearance.  

 Density Bonus Laws-Government Code §§ 65915 was first passed in 1979 and 

since then has undergone several amendments.  California’s Density Bonus Law (DBL) in 

general, allows developers whose housing development proposals meet certain 

thresholds of affordability be granted/receive density bonuses beyond the maximum 
densities allowed in residential zones, and incentives and development waivers from the 

local agency/City.   

Local Adopted Policies- The City of Holtville adopted the follow Housing Element Policies 2008 

consistent with the aforementioned statutes:  

Policy 1.2: Encourage density bonus and other regulatory incentives for single family units 

that provide for lower income household integration. 

Policy 2.1: Promote mixed-use housing integration with commercial activities in the 
downtown area of Holtville for target groups such as small business owners, elderly 

households, single person households, etc. 

Policy 2.6: Periodically review City regulations, ordinances, and residential fees to ensure 

that they do not unduly constrain housing development. 

 
Adopted Program Actions- The 2006-2014 Housing Element further incorporated the following 

program action items is support of the aforementioned policies: 

Action: 2. Density Bonus and Incentives Program Pursuant to State density bonus law, 

if a developer allocates at least 10 percent of single-family units in a housing project to lower 
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income households, or at least 50 percent for “qualifying residents” (e.g. seniors), the City 

must either: a) grant a density bonus of 25 percent, along with one additional regulatory 
concession to ensure that the housing development will be produced at reduced cost, or b) 

provide other incentives of equivalent financial value based upon the land cost per dwelling 
unit. The developer shall agree to and the City shall ensure affordability and sale to qualified 

lower income households. The City will also use the density bonus ordinance process to 

encourage the development of large family units (3+ bedrooms) that are affordable to lower 
income households. At least 50 percent of the single-family units allocated to lower income 

households will be required to be at least 3 bedrooms. 

Action:  22. Special Needs Residential Land Use Clarification & Zoning Amendment 
State law requires that the City’s Zoning Ordinance give certain considerations to a variety of 

housing types, including Farmworker Housing, Single Room Occupancies (SRO’s), Emergency 

Housing, and Transitional and Supportive Housing. Although the Zoning Ordinance informally 
allows these housing types in all residential, not all are explicitly The maximum number of 

beds/persons permitted to be served nightly; specified in the Ordinance by name. The 

current ordinance provides examples such as foster homes, social rehabilitation facilities, 
community treatment facilities and transitional care facilities. As such, the City will clarify the 

Zoning Ordinance via an amendment to clarify that the following housing types are allowed in 
certain residential and agricultural areas as outlined below: 

Farmworker Housing- Pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 17021.6 which 
precludes a local government from requiring a conditional use permit, zoning variance, 

and/or other zoning clearance for employee farmworker housing consisting of no more 

than 36 beds in a group quarters or 12 units or spaces designed for use by a single 
family or household in all agricultural zones, farmworker housing shall be explicitly 

specified. 

SROs- Single-Room Occupancy (SRO) units are recognized by the State as a valuable 

form of affordable private housing for lower-income individuals, seniors and persons with 

disabilities. In order to promote the new construction of SROs in Holtville, the City will 
explicitly identify the residential zones under which SRO’s are allowed by right. 

Emergency Shelters- The City will amend its Zoning Ordinance to clarify that 
“transitional care facilities” include Emergency Shelters. Emergency Shelters will be 

subject to the same development and management standards as other permitted uses in 

R-2 and R-3 Zones, as summarized in the Constraints Section of the Housing Element. In
addition, the City will develop written, objective standards for emergency shelters as

permitted under SB 2:

Transitional and Supportive Housing-Transitional and Supportive Housing will be 

subject to the same development and management standards as other permitted uses in 
R-2 and R-3 Zones, as summarized in the Constraints Section of the Housing Element.

Parking requirements, fire regulations, and design standards should not impede the

efficient use of these sites.

Housing for Persons with Disabilities (Group Homes with more than 6 persons)-

Pursuant to the Holtville Zoning Ordinance, housing for persons with disabilities for six 
persons or less is allowed by right in all residential zones; however, housing for persons 

with disabilities that contain more than six persons will be subject to the same 

development and management standards as other permitted uses in R-2 and R-3 Zones, 
as summarized in the Constraints Section of the Housing Element. Parking requirements 

and the need for accessory structures to accommodate the disabled should not impede 
the efficient use of these sites. 
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Amendments Recommended- Implementation of the aforementioned actions require textual 
changes in the City of Holtville Zoning Ordinance and the establishment of a new Density Bonus 
Section. Changes are proposed in the permitted and conditional uses allowed in residential zones, 
as well as text amendments to definitions and development standards in relation farm worker 
housing, transitional housing, supportive housing, second units and residential group care 
facilities (See Attachment B- Zoning Text Amendments). The amendments format 
underlines the proposed new language, strikes through the existing language to be deleted, and 
leaves existing language to be retained as is, as recommended by Michael Baker International to 
meet the aforementioned Housing Element objectives and State law. A new Section 17.49 
“Density Bonus” to the Holtville Zoning Ordinance is proposed (See Attachment C-Density 
Bonus Text).  

ENVIRONMENTAL 

The textual amendments to the zoning ordinance are exempt from California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA). Pursuant to CEQA requirements a Notice of Exemption was filed with OPR on 

October 11, 2016, citing exemption per Sectio11n 15061 (b) (3) General Rule. Under this General 

Rule, if it can be seen with certainty that the project does not have potential for causing a 

significant effect on the environment it is not subject to CEQA. A Notice of Exemption was filed 

on October 11, 2016.  

PUBLIC NOTICING 

Pursuant to Section 17.64.020 of the Holtville Zoning Ordinance, a change in the text of the 

regulations may be initiated by the Planning Commission or City Council subject to Public 

Hearing. The amendments proposed were initiated under the adopted 2008 Housing Element.  A 

Public Hearing before the Planning Commission was posted on October 5, 2016 at least ten days 

prior to the original hearing date of October 17, 2016, which was rescheduled to December 27, 

2016.  The Notice was also published in English and Spanish in the Holtville Tribune. A public 

hearing before the City Council was posted on January 9, 2017 prior to the hearing date of 

January 23, 2017 and published on January 12, 2017 (See Attachment D-Public Hearing 

Notice).    

RECOMMENDATION AND PENDING ACTION 

Pursuant to Section 17.64.020 of the Zoning Ordinance, the City Council should hold the public 

hearing and consider all testimonies for and against, on the proposed amendments, and 

introduce & waive the first reading of Ordinance 428 (See Attachment E-Ordinance 428). 

Actions may be considered as follows: 

1. Introduce and waive the first reading of Ordinance 428 for the amendment of the zoning

ordinance, and the addition of a density bonus section ; or

Alternative 

2. Do not waive the first reading of Ordinance 428 and request modifications; or

3. Reject the proposed amendments and provide alternative directive to Staff.

ATTACHMENTS  
Attachment A- Public Hearing Notice October 17, 2016 
Attachment B- Zoning Text Amendments 
Attachment C- Density Bonus Text 

Attachment D- Public Hearing Notice 
Attachment E- Ordinance 486 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment A 

Public Hearing Notice October 17,2016 





RESOLUTION NO. PC 16-06 

A RESOLUTION OF THE HOLTVILLE PLANNING COMMISION  

RECOMMENDING ADOPTING OF THE PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE 

TEXT AMENDMENTS AND DENSITY BONUS ORDIANCE TO FURTHER 

THE HOUSING ELEMENT OBJECTIVES  

WHEREAS, the City of Holtville is required to adopt a Housing Element of the 

General Plan, in compliance with State Law, which sets forth goals, policies, and 

programs to define and clarify housing allowances and meet housing objectives; and 

WHEREAS, The City of Holtville initiated a comprehensive update of the 

Holtville Housing Element which was adopted on October 2008 and is currently 

performing a second mandatory Housing Element Update; and  

WHEREAS, the 2008 Housing Element incorporated policies and respective 

action programs that necessitate amendments to the Holtville Zoning Ordinance and 

establishment of a Density Bonus Ordinance for compliance with State Law; and 

WHEREAS, a duly noticed public hearing was scheduled for October 17, 2016 

and rescheduled and held December 19, 2016 by the Planning Commission in order to 

provide citizens an opportunity to comment on the proposed zoning ordinance 

amendments; and 

WHEREAS, upon hearing and considering all testimony and arguments, 

analyzing the information submitted by staff and considering any written and oral 

comments received, the Holtville Planning Commission considered all facts relating to 

the proposed amendments to the Holtville Zoning Ordinance; and 

NOW THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED, that the Holtville Planning 

Commission determines as follows: 

A) That the foregoing recitations are true and correct; and

B) That based on the evidence presented at the public hearing, the Planning

Commission hereby recommends approval of the proposed Zoning

Ordinance Amendments and Density Bonus Ordinance, hereby

incorporated as Exhibit A and Exhibit B, respectively, and based on the

following findings:

1. The project has been reviewed in accordance with the requirements

set forth by the City of Holtville for implementation of the

California Environmental Quality Act.

2. The proposed amendments to the Holtville Zoning Ordinance and

adoption of the Density Bonus Ordinance are consistent with the

objectives of the Holtville General Plan.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED at the regular meeting of the Planning Commission of 

the City of Holtville, California held on this 19h day of December, 2016. 



 

 

 

 

     
 

       
      _______________________________ 

        Ross Daniels, Chairman 

 

 

I, the undersigned, Secretary of the City of Holtville Planning Commission, DO 

HEREBY CERTIFY, that the foregoing resolution was adopted at a regular meeting of 

the Planning Commission held on the 19h day of December, 2016, by the following votes: 

 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

 

___________________________ 

Denise Garcia, Secretary 
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Attachment B- Draft Zoning Text Amendments 

Underlined is proposed new language. 

Strike through is existing language to be deleted. 

Standard type is existing language to be retained. 

1. Definitions

17.04.070 “Farm Worker Housing” means any attached or detached dwelling unit used to house 
farm/agricultural workers and their family members, including temporary mobile homes. For the 
purpose of calculating density, no more than one food preparation area shall be provided for each 
Farm Worker Housing unit. Farm worker housing is divided into to the following subtypes: 

• Any employee housing for 6 persons or fewer

• Any employee housing consisting of no more than 36 beds in group quarters or 12 units or
spaces each designed for use by a single family or household as further defined by Section
17008 of the California Health and Safety Code.

17.04.200 “S” definitions. 

“Supportive Housing” means housing with no limit on length of stay, that is occupied by the target 

population, and that is linked to an on-site or off-site service that assists the supportive housing 

resident in retaining the housing, improving his or her health status, and maximizing his or her 

ability to live and, when possible, work in the community 

17.04.210 “T” definitions. 

“Target Population” means persons with low incomes who have one or more disabilities, including 
mental illness, HIV or AIDS, substance abuse, or other chronic health condition, or individuals 
eligible for services provided pursuant to the Lanterman Developmental Disabilities Services Act 
(Division 4.5 (commencing with Section 4500) of the Welfare and Institutions Code) and may 
include, among other populations, adults, emancipated minors, families with children, elderly 
persons, young adults aging out of the foster care system, individuals exiting from institutional 
settings, veterans, and homeless people. 

“Transitional Housing” means buildings configured as rental housing developments, but operated 
under program requirements that require the termination of assistance and recirculating of the 
assisted unit to another eligible program recipient at a predetermined future point in time that 
shall be no less than six months from the beginning of the assistance. rental housing operated 
under program requirements that call for the termination of assistance. (Ord. 472 § 3, 2010; Ord. 
441 § 1, 2000). 



2. Use Tables  

 

Table 17.16-1 
Permitted and Conditional Uses  

– OS Open Space Zone  
 

Uses 
Permitted 

Use 

Conditional 

Use1 

Agricultural land used for production of food or fiber on 20 acres or more X X 

Plant and animal preservation X  

Special management areas including fault zones, unstable soil and high fire risk 

areas 
X  

Outdoor recreation – Parks, utility easements, trails and scenic highway corridors X  

Farm worker housing, consisting of no more than 36 beds in group quarters or 12 

units or spaces each designed for use by a single family or household on 20 acres 

or more 

 X 

City Hall and fire station  X 

Commercial recreation facilities  X 

Electrical substations  X 

Public utility structures  X 

Reservoirs  X 

Residential uses on lots, or parcels with a minimum size of 20 acres  X 

Transitional housing on lots, or parcels with a minimum size of 20 acres   X 

Supportive housing on lots, or parcels with a minimum size of 20 acres   X 
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Table 17.18-1 
A-1 Agricultural Zone  

– Permitted and Conditional Uses  

Uses 
Permitted 

Use 
Conditional 

Use1 

Single-family homes and mobile homes subject to the density limits contained in 
the general plan 

X  

Farm worker housing for 6 persons or fewer X  

Farm worker housing, consisting of no more than 36 beds in group quarters or 12 
units or spaces each designed for use by a single family or household 

X  

Growing and harvesting of agricultural crops X  

Farm animals and poultry for the production of farm products, such as milk and 
eggs (excluding feed lots, slaughterhouses, rendering plants and similar offensive 
uses) 

X  

Orchards and nurseries X  

Commercial and light industrial uses which support or are connected to the 
agricultural industry. The following uses are permitted: 

1. Tractor and other farm implement repair and/or service shops 
2. Welding shops which repair agricultural equipment 
3. Agricultural equipment sales offices and display yards for the sale of farm 
equipment 
4. Commercial fruit stands and other stands which sell agricultural products to the 
general public 

Other commercial and light industrial uses which are agriculturally related and 
compatible with surrounding uses are: 

1. Accessory buildings and structures 
2. Home occupations as provided in the home occupation regulations 

X  

Transitional Housing or Supportive Housing X  

Churches, temples or other places used exclusively for religious worship  X 

Communications equipment buildings  X 

Country clubs  X 

Golf courses  X 

Electric distribution substations, including microwave facilities  X 

Fire stations  X 

Libraries  X 

Museums  X 

Police stations  X 

Schools, through grade 12, accredited, including appurtenant facilities, which offer 
instruction required to be taught in the public schools by the Education Code of the 
State of California, but excluding trade or commercial schools 

 X 

Service stations/convenience stores  X 

Storage, temporary, of materials and construction equipment used in construction 
or maintenance of streets and highways, sewers, storm drains, underground 
conduits, flood control works, pipelines and similar uses 

 X 

Day care centers  X 

3 



Table 17.20-1 

RR-1 Low Density Rural Residential Zone  

– Permitted and Conditional Uses 

Uses 
Permitted 

Use1 
Conditional 

Use2 

Accessory buildings and structures X  

Agricultural crops X  

Animals on lots or parcels at least one-half acre in size with large animals 
restricted to one per half-acre, except that parcels larger than five acres could 
have one large animal per half-acre for the first five acres and four per acre for all 
acres beyond the initial five acres 

X  

Hatching, raising and fattening of chickens, rabbits or cattle for domestic use only. 
There shall be no killing or dressing of any such animals or poultry on the 
premises for commercial purposes 

X  

Orchards and nurseries X  

Home occupations as provided in Chapter 17.46 HMC X  

Single-family homes and mobile homes X  

Residential care homes serving up to six clients, includes foster family homes and 
small family homes for nonmedical assisted group care 

X  

Second unit X  

Farm worker housing for 6 persons or fewer X  

Farm worker housing, consisting of no more than 36 beds in group quarters or 12 
units or spaces each designed for use by a single family or household 

X  

Transitional housing or Supportive Housing X  

Churches, temples or other places used exclusively for religious worship  X 

Communications equipment buildings  X 

Country clubs  X 

Electric distribution substations, including microwave facilities  X 

Fire stations  X 

Golf courses  X 

Libraries  X 

Museums  X 

Police stations  X 

Service stations/convenience stores  X 

Schools, through grade 12, accredited, including appurtenant facilities, which offer 
instruction required to be taught in the public schools by the Education Code of 
the State of California, but excluding trade or commercial schools 

 X 

Storage, temporary, of materials and construction equipment used in construction 
or maintenance of streets and highways, sewers, storm drains, underground 
conduits, flood control works, pipelines and similar uses 

 X 
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Table 17.22-1 
RR-2 Medium Density Rural Residential Zone  

– Permitted and Conditional Uses 

Uses 
Permitted 

Use1 
Conditional 

Use2 

Accessory buildings and structures X  

Agricultural crops X  

Animals, large and small, subject to the following limitations: (A) In order to keep 
large animals such as cattle and horses, the parcel size shall be at least one-half 
acre, except that no more than 10 large animals shall be kept regardless of the 
parcel size; and (B) the number of small animals such as goats, sheep and swine 
shall be limited to no more than two per one-half acre lot or parcel, with a limit of 
10 per lot or parcel 

X  

Home occupations as provided in Chapter 17.46 HMC X  

Single-family homes and mobile homes X  

Residential care homes serving up to six clients, includes foster family homes and 
small family homes for nonmedical assisted group care 

X  

Transitional housing or Supportive Housing X  

Second unit X  

Farm worker housing for 6 persons or fewer X  

Farm worker housing, consisting of no more than 36 beds in group quarters or 12 
units or spaces each designed for use by a single family or household 

X  

Orchards and nurseries X  

Churches, temples or other places used exclusively for religious worship  X 

Communication equipment buildings  X 

Country clubs  X 

Day care centers  X 

Electric distribution substations, including microwave facilities  X 

Fire stations  X 

Golf courses  X 

Libraries  X 

Museums  X 

Police stations  X 

Service stations/convenience stores  X 

Schools, through grade 12, accredited, including appurtenant facilities, which offer 
instruction required to be taught in the public schools by the Education Code of 
the State of California, but excluding trade or commercial schools 

 X 

Storage, temporary, of materials and construction equipment used in construction 
or maintenance of streets and highways, sewers, storm drains, underground 
conduits, flood control works, pipelines and similar uses 

 X 
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Table 17.24-1 
R-1 Single-Family Zone  

– Permitted and Conditional Uses 

Uses 
Permitted 

Use1 
Conditional 

Use2 

Accessory buildings and structures including auto-mobile garages and carports X  

Animals in accordance with Chapter 7.12 HMC and usual household pets X  

Home occupations as provided in Chapter 17.46 HMC X  

Private greenhouses and horticultural collections, flower and vegetable gardens X  

Single-family detached residential dwellings including mobile homes X  

Residential care homes serving up to six clients, includes foster family homes 
and small family homes for nonmedical assisted group care 

X  

Transitional housing or Supportive Housing X  

Second unit X  

Farm worker housing for 6 persons or fewer X  

Churches, convents, monasteries, and other religious institutions  X 

Day nurseries and nursery schools  X 

Educational institutions  X 

Flag poles, radio towers, masts or aerials in excess of 35 feet above the ground  X 

Public libraries and museums  X 

Public parks and recreational facilities  X 

Public utility and public service facilities  X 
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Chapter 17.26 
R-2 TWO-FAMILY ZONE 

Sections: 

17.26.010 Intent. 

17.26.020 Permitted uses. 

17.26.030 Conditional uses. 

17.26.040 Minimum property development standards. 

17.26.050 Special objective standards for transitional housing facilities and emergency shelters. 

 

Table 17.26-1 
R-2 Two-Family Zone  

– Permitted and Conditional Uses 

Uses 
Permitted 

Use1 
Conditional 

Use2 

Accessory buildings and structures X  

Animals in accordance with Chapter 7.12 HMC and usual household pets X  

Home occupations as provided in Chapter 17.46 HMC X  

Single-family residential dwellings, including mobile homes X  

Two-family residential dwelling units X  

Residential care homes serving up to six clients, includes foster family 
homes and small family homes for nonmedical assisted group care 

X  

Residential care homes serving greater than six clients, includes foster family 
homes and small family homes for nonmedical assisted group care 

X  

Transitional care facilities and Emergency shelters serving six ten or fewer 
persons 

X  

Transitional housing or Supportive Housing X  

Second unit X  

Farm worker housing for 6 persons or fewer X  

Day nurseries and nursery schools  X 

Educational institutions  X 

Flag poles, radio towers, masts or aerials of 35 feet above the ground  X 

Public libraries  X 

Public parks and public recreation facilities  X 

Public utility and public service facilities  X 

Religious institutions  X 
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17.26.050 Special objective standards for transitional housing facilities and emergency shelters. 

All transitional housing and emergency shelters in the R-2 zone shall meet all the applicable development 

standards as listed above, and in addition meet the following requirements: 

A. Facilities and eEmergency shelters shall be limited to a maximum of six ten beds. 

B. Parking requirements shall be the same as for nursing homes and convalescent hospitals as described 

in Table 17.52-1.  

C. All waiting and intake areas shall be within an enclosed building and shall have a legal occupancy 

rating of six ten people.  

D. Each facility shall accommodate a minimum daytime staff of one staff member per six ten occupied 

beds, and a minimum nighttime staff of one staff per six ten occupied beds.  

E. No parcel with an transitional home or emergency shelter shall be established closer than 300 feet 

from another parcel with an transitional home or emergency shelter use. 

F. The length of stay within an transitional housing facility or emergency shelter shall be limited to a 

maximum of six months.  

G. The exterior lighting of the building housing the transitional housing facility or emergency shelter shall 

be provided to adequately illuminate all sides of the building to allow for security to monitor all sides of the 

structure. 

H. Security staff or electronic cameras with video monitors that can be viewed by nighttime staff shall be 

provided to monitor the exterior of the building housing the transitional housing or emergency care 

facilities. The exterior of the building shall be monitored by security staff or electronic cameras between 

10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. (Ord. 472 § 3, 2010). 
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Chapter 17.28 
R-3 MULTIFAMILY ZONE 

Sections: 

17.28.010    Intent. 

17.28.020    Permitted uses. 

17.28.030    Conditional uses. 

17.28.040    Minimum property development standards. 

17.28.050    Landscaping requirements. 

17.28.060    Special objective standards for transitional housing facilities and emergency shelters. 

Table 17.28-1 
R-3 Multifamily Zone  

– Permitted and Conditional Uses 

Uses 
Permitted 

Use1 

Conditional 

Use2 

Accessory buildings and structures X  

Home occupations as provided in Chapter 17.46 HMC X  

Household pets in accordance with Chapter 7.12 HMC X  

Multiple housing units, including apartments, condominiums and 
townhouses 

X  

Single-family and two-family residential dwellings, including mobile homes X  

Residential care homes serving up to six clients, includes foster family 
homes and small family homes for nonmedical assisted group care 

X  

Residential care homes serving greater than six clients, includes foster 
family homes and small family homes for nonmedical assisted group care 

X  

Transitional housing facilities and Emergency shelters serving six ten or 
fewer persons 

X  

Transitional housing or Supportive Housing X  

Second unit X  

Farm worker housing for 6 persons or fewer X  

Day nurseries and nursery schools  X 

Educational institutions  X 

Flag poles, radio towers, masts or aerials in excess of 35 feet above the 
ground surface 

 X 

Hospitals, nursing homes and long-term care facilities  X 

Public libraries and museums  X 

Public parks and public recreational facilities  X 

Public utility and public service facilities  X 

Religious institutions  X 

Roominghouses and boardinghouses  X 
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17.28.060 Special objective standards for transitional housing facilities and emergency shelters. 

All group care facilities and emergency shelters in the R-3 zone shall meet all the applicable development 

standards listed in the applicable zone, and in addition meet the following requirements: 

A. Facilities andEmergency shelters shall be limited to a maximum of six ten beds. 

B. Parking requirements shall be the same as for nursing homes and convalescent hospitals as described 

in Table 17.52-1.  

C. All waiting and intake areas shall be within an enclosed building and shall have a legal occupancy 

rating of six ten people.  

D. Each facility shall accommodate a minimum daytime staff of one staff member per six ten occupied 

beds, and a minimum nighttime staff of one staff per six ten occupied beds.  

E. No parcel with an transitional home or emergency shelter shall be established closer than 300 feet 

from another parcel with an transitional home or emergency shelter use. 

F. The length of stay within an transitional housing facility or emergency shelter shall be limited to a 

maximum of six months.  

G. The exterior lighting of the building housing the transitional housing facility or emergency shelter shall 

be provided to adequately illuminate all sides of the building to allow for security to monitor all sides of the 

structure. 

H. Security staff or electronic cameras with video monitors that can be viewed by nighttime staff shall be 

provided to monitor the exterior of the building housing the transitional housing or emergency care 

facilities. The exterior of the building shall be monitored by security staff or electronic cameras between 

10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. (Ord. 472 § 3, 2010). 
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Table 17.30-1 
R-4 Mobile Home Park Zone  

– Permitted and Conditional Uses 

Uses 
Permitted 

Use1 
Conditional 

Use2 

Accessory buildings and/or structures X  

Home occupations as provided in Chapter 17.46 HMC X  

Household pets in accordance with Chapter 7.12 HMC X  

Mobile homes not on a permanent foundation X  

Residential care homes serving up to six clients, includes foster family homes and 
small family homes for nonmedical assisted group care 

X  

Transitional housing or Supportive Housing  X 

Apartments, at the same density and standards as permitted in this zone but limited 
to 15 feet or one story 

 X 

Commercial recreation facilities  X 

Flag poles, radio towers, masts or aerials in excess of 35 feet above the ground  X 

Incidental uses3: 
1. Dwelling for owner and/or manager 
2. Food markets related only to the park 
3. Restroom facilities 
4. Nonalcoholic beverage services related only to the park 
5. Personal services 
6. Recreation facilities 
7. Restaurants, including dancing and alcoholic beverage sales for park use only 
8. Sale of items related to maintenance and operations of mobile homes within the 
park 

 X 

Recreational vehicle park: 
1. Motor homes 
2. Recreation vehicles 
3. Campers 
4. Camp cars 
5. Tent campers 

 X 

Trailers occupied for uses other than habitation  X 

Travel trailer park: 
1. Trailers 

 X 
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Table 17.32-1 
RC Residential Commercial Mixed Use Zone  

– Permitted and Conditional Uses 
 

Uses 
Permitted 

Use1 
Conditional 

Use2 

All uses permitted in Chapters 17.26, 17.28 and 17.36 HMC existing on 
October 7, 1996 

X  

Farm worker housing for 6 persons or fewer X  

Second unit  X 

Residential care homes serving up to six clients, includes foster family homes 
and small family homes for nonmedical assisted group care 

 X 

Transitional Housing  X 

Supportive Housing  X 

A conditional use permit will be required for all new development or uses 
within the residential/commercial mixed use zone to ensure compatibility, 
zoning and general plan consistency, and to ensure they do not undermine 
the intent of the RC zone. 

 X 
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Table 17.36-1 
C-2 General Commercial Zone  

– Permitted and Conditional Uses 

 

Uses 
Permitted 

Use1 
Conditional 

Use2 

All permitted uses allowed in Chapter 17.34 HMC X  

Fee-based commercial recreation X  

Financial, professional services and office uses which are conducted in office 
buildings or clinics 

X  

Garment assembly, manufacturing and wholesale distribution X  

General service uses, primarily engaged in rendering services to individuals and 
business establishments 

X  

Motel, hotel, motor hotel X  

Newspaper publishing, printing, and publishing establishments X  

Parking lots X  

Nonprofit private institutions and organizations which operate on a membership 
basis for the promotion of the interest of their members 

X  

Radio and television broadcasting studios X  

Retail uses engaged in selling merchandise for personal, household or farm 
consumption, and rendering services incidental to the sale of the goods 

X  

Schools, business and professional, including art, barber, beauty, dance, drama, 
music and swimming 

X  

Trade schools X  

Transportation terminals X  

Telephone exchanges X  

All conditional uses allowed in Chapter 17.34 HMC  X 

Automotive body repair and/or automotive painting  X 

Automotive repair  X 

Automobile/truck washes or laundries  X 

Building materials  X 

Contractor’s storage yard  X 

Distribution agencies  X 

Equipment rental  X 

Feed and fuel  X 

Lumberyard  X 

Machinery and equipment rentals  X 

Material storage yard  X 
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Uses 
Permitted 

Use1 
Conditional 

Use2 

Residential facilities and group care facilities serving more than six persons for the 
24-hour nonmedical care of persons in need of personal services, supervision, or 
assistance; includes transitional care facilities and emergency shelters 

 X 

Transitional housing or Supportive Housing  X 

Long-term care facilities  X 

Places of assembly with a seating capacity for more than 100 persons  X 

Public libraries, fire stations, and other public offices and related uses  X 

Sales of new and used vehicles  X 

Truck terminals  X 

Utility service yards  X 

17.36.080 Special objective standards for transitional housing facilities and emergency shelters. 

All group care facilities and emergency shelters in the C-2 zone shall meet all the applicable development 

standards listed in the applicable zone, and in addition meet the following requirements: 

A. Parking requirements shall be the same as for nursing homes and convalescent hospitals as described 

in Table 17.52-1.  

B. All waiting and intake areas shall be within an enclosed building and shall have a legal occupancy rating 

as determined by the conditional use permit.  

C. Each facility shall accommodate a minimum daytime staff of one staff member per six occupied beds, 

and a minimum nighttime staff of one staff per six occupied beds.  

D. No parcel with an transitional home or emergency shelter shall be established closer than 300 feet from 

another parcel with a transitional home or emergency shelter use. 

E. The length of stay within an transitional housing facility or emergency shelter shall be limited to a 

maximum of six months.  

F. The exterior lighting of the building housing the transitional housing facility or emergency shelter shall be 

provided to adequately illuminate all sides of the building to allow for security to monitor all sides of the 

structure. 

G. Security staff or electronic cameras with video monitors that can be viewed by nighttime staff shall be 

provided to monitor the exterior of the building housing the transitional housing or emergency care facilities. 

The exterior of the building shall be monitored by security staff or electronic cameras between 10:00 p.m. 

and 6:00 a.m. (Ord. 472 § 3, 2010). 
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Chapter 17.41 
DOWNTOWN CODE 
Table 17.41.050-1: 

Allowed Uses 
 

Uses D-A Zone D-B Zone 

Attached Single-Family Residential N C 

Commercial Recreation and Entertainment P1 P1 

Detached Single-Family Residential N C 

Government/Institutional P P 

Home Occupation N P 

Hotel/Motel P P 

Single-Room Occupancy N P 

Live/Work Space P P 

Mixed Use P P 

Multifamily Residential C C 

Farm worker housing for 6 persons or fewer N C 

Transitional housing or Supportive C  C 

Second unit N C 

Offices P P 

Retail Commercial P1 P1 

Sit-Down Restaurants P P 

Warehousing, Manufacturing, Wholesaling and Distribution N C 
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3. Second Units 

Chapter 17.48 
SECOND DWELLING UNITS 

Sections: 

17.48.010 Intent. 

17.48.020 Prohibition. 

17.48.030 Definition. 

17.48.040 Environment. 

17.48.050 Development standards and conditions for approval of new second units. 

17.48.060 Required findings and conditions. 

17.48.070 Procedure for establishing second unit. 

17.48.010    Intent. 

The intent of this chapter is to provide development standards for second dwelling units on lots that 
contain single-family dwellings to ensure that second units are compatible with existing neighborhoods. 
(Ord. 441 § 1, 2000). 

17.48.020 Applicability and Fees. 

Second dwelling units shall be allowed as detailed in the zone chapters. No second dwelling unit shall be 
constructed by any person who has not first obtained a conditional use permit from the planning 
commission and paid the Ffees shall be as set by the city council by resolution. (Ord. 441 § 1, 2000). 

17.48.040 Environment. 

A. The approval of a second unit in the single-family residential zone is exempt from the provisions of the 
California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA).  

B. Conditionally Permitted Second Units. Second units on a block are limited to four in number and shall 
not be constructed on blocks without alleys for the following reasons: 

1.A. Since the city has approximately four miles citywide of unpaved alleys, second units shall be 
limited to four in number per block to ensure that no further adverse impacts occur from dust 
generation, trackout and traffic generation; and 

2.B. Second units shall not be constructed in blocks without alleys since tandem parking of a 
second unit vehicle is not permitted. (Ord. 441 § 1, 2000). 

17.48.050 Development standards and conditions for approval of new second units. 

Table 17.48-1 depicts development standards for second dwelling units. 

Table 17.48-1 
Second Dwelling Units  

– Development Standards and Conditions for Approval of New Second Units 

Second Dwelling Units Standards and Conditions 

New second dwelling units Must meet requirements of Chapter 17.20 HMC relating to height, 
setback, lot coverage, parking, architectural review, site plan review 
fees and charges 

Parking One off-street paved parking space 

Height No more than two stories, with parking in the lower level 

Minimum lot area 6,000 square feet (lot shall contain an existing residential dwelling 
which is owner-occupied) 

Maximum unit size A. 30 percent of the existing residential floor area, if attached 
B. Not exceeding 1,200 square feet if detached 
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In addition to the development standards described in Table 17.48-1, the following development standards 
also apply to second dwelling units: 

A. The second dwelling unit shall meet requirements of the zone in which it is located relating to height, 
setback, lot coverage, architectural review, site plan review, fees and charges; 

B. The second dwelling unit may be constructed within an existing building or detached accessory 
building; 

C. The second living unit shall conform in design, materials and colors consistent with the main living 
unit, when attached; 

D. The owner shall pay to the city all appropriate fees at the time the building permit is obtained; 

E. The second unit may not be sold separately. However, the second unit shall be provided separate 
water and electric meters; 

F. Property owners within a 300-foot radius of the site, and property owners within the existing block, 
will be notified in writing of the proposed second unit, and shall be notified at least 10 days prior to a 
decision by the planning commission; and 

G. In the case where an existing small dwelling unit abuts an alley, the new second dwelling unit 
maximum size may be larger as long as the total lot coverage does not exceed 50 percent. (Ord. 441 
§ 1, 2000). 

17.48.060 Required findings and conditions. 

A conditional use permit in accordance with this chapter shall be required to be issued by the planning 
commission provided the following findings are made: 

A second unit will be allowed, provided that: 

A. The proposed second unit is conformity with the standards of the zone and other applicable 
ordinances; 

B. The plan for the second unit reflects sufficient consideration of the relationship between the proposed 
buildings, structures, traffic demands, parking, and those that already exist or have been approved for 
the general neighborhood so as to preserve and protect neighborhood character, and once in place will 
not adversely impact this neighborhood character; 

C. The second unit is not so different in its exterior design and appearance from that of other existing 
structures in the general neighborhood so as to cause the local environs to materially depreciate in 
appearance and value; 

D. All necessary city permits will be obtained prior to construction; and 

E. Construction work must begin under the building permit within 12 months after the effective date of 
the building permit and carried on diligently to completion or the permit shall expire. (Ord. 441 § 1, 
2000). 

17.48.070 Procedure for establishing second unit. 

A second unit must be established through the conditional use permit process described in Chapter 17.60 
HMC. (Ord. 441 § 1, 2000). 
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Attachment C - Draft Density Bonus Text

4. Density Bonus – New Chapter

Chapter 17.49 Density Bonus 

Sections: 

17.49.010 Purpose 

17.49.020 Applicability 

17.49.030 Definitions 

17.49.040 Eligibility for Density Bonus and Incentives 

17.49.050 Application and Fees Required 

17.49.060 Effect of Proposal for Waiver or Reduction of Development Standards 

17.49.070 Density Bonus Allowance for Housing Development with Affordable Housing Component 

17.49.080 Density Bonus for Housing Development with Affordable Housing Component and Child Care Facility 

17.49.090 Density Bonus for Senior Citizen Housing Development 

17.49.100 Density Bonus for Land Donations 

17.49.110 Affordable Housing Incentives 

17.49.120 Number of Incentives Granted 

17.49.130 Criteria for Denial of Application for Incentives 

17.49.140 Waiver or Modification of Development Standards 

17.49.150 Parking Standard Modifications for Qualified Housing Development 

17.49.160 Density Bonus and Affordable Housing Incentives Program 

17.49.170 Determination on Density Bonus and Affordable Housing Incentives Program Requirements 

17.49.180 Affordable Housing Agreements and Equity Sharing Agreements 

17.49.190 Density Bonus or Incentives for Condominium Conversion Projects 

17.49.200 Enforcement Provisions 
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17.49.010 Purpose 

This chapter implements the statutory requirements set forth in Government Code § 65915 et seq. (known as state 
density bonus law). To the extent practicable, the citation to the governing statutory provision is included next to the 
implementing ordinance section. If any provision of this chapter conflicts with state law, the latter shall control. 
Applicable statutes should be consulted for amendments prior to applying the ordinance provision.  

17.49.020 Applicability 

The density bonuses and incentives contained in this chapter shall apply to housing developments eligible for a 
density bonus under state density bonus law. When an applicant seeks a density bonus for a housing development 
within, or for the donation of land for housing within, the City’s jurisdiction that meets the requirements set out in 
California Government Code § 65915, the actions and procedures set out in this chapter shall apply.  The burden 
is on the applicant to show that the housing development meets such requirements. The density bonus provisions 
of California Government Code §§ 65915–65918 (state density bonus law), as may be amended from time to time, 
are incorporated by reference into this chapter. The City reserves the right to review applications for a density bonus 
in accordance with California Government Code §§ 65915–65918.   

17.49.030 Definitions 

In addition to the definitions in Chapter 17.04, the following definitions in this section apply to this chapter and shall 
control where there is a conflict with the definitions in Chapter 17.04. State law definitions, as they may be amended 
from time to time, control over the definitions in this section. Where the definitions are provided by state law, the 
citation to the statute follows.  

A. “Affordable Housing Benefits”: Means one or more of the following:  

1. A density bonus pursuant to Section 17.49.070. 

2. An incentive pursuant to Section 17.49.110. 

3. A development standard waiver or modification pursuant to Section 17.49.140. 

4. A parking standard modification pursuant to Section 17.49.150.  

B. “Affordable Housing”: Dwelling units with a sales price or rent within the means of a low- or moderate-
income household as defined by state or federal legislation. As used in this Development Code:  

1. Very low income refers to family units/household whose annual income is fifty percent (50%) 
or less of the area's median income as defined in Health and Safety Code Section 50105. 
(Gov. Code § 65915(b)(1)(B))  

2. Low income refers to family units/households whose annual income is between fifty percent 
(50%) and eighty percent (80%) of the area's median income as defined in Health and Safety 
Code Section 50079.5. (Gov. Code § 65915(b)(1)(A))  

3. Moderate income refers to family units/households whose annual income is between eighty 
percent (80%) and one-hundred twenty percent (120%) of the area's median income as 
defined in Health and Safety Code Section 50093. (Gov. Code § 65915(b)(1)(D)) 

C. “Affordable Housing Cost”: The definition set forth in Health and Safety Code Section 50052.5. (Gov. Code 
§ 65915(c)(1))  

D. “Affordable Housing Developer”: The applicant or permittee of a qualified housing development and its 
assignees or successors in interest.  

E. “Affordable Rent”: The definition set forth in Health and Safety Code Section 50053. (Gov. Code § 
65915(c)(1))  

F. “Child Care Facility”: A child day care facility other than a family day care home, including but not limited to 
infant centers, preschools, extended day care facilities, and school age child care centers. (Gov. Code § 
65915(h)(4)) 

G. “Common Interest Development”: Any of the following: a community apartment project, a condominium 
project, a planned development, and a stock cooperative pursuant to Civil Code Section 1351(c) and 
pursuant to Civil Code Section 4100. All Common Interest Development units must be offered to the public 
for purchase. (Gov. Code § 65915(b)(1)(D))  
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H. “Condominium Conversion Project”: A residential project in which the applicant proposes to convert 
apartment units to condominiums pursuant to Government Code Section 65915.5(a).  

I. “Density Bonus Units”: Dwelling units granted pursuant to Section 17.49.040 which exceed the otherwise 
Maximum Allowable Residential Density.  

J. “Density Bonus”: A process by which a city, at the request of an applicant, can increase the density within 
a development project by a percentage established by law or through which the city offers incentives 
supporting economic viability in return for guarantees with respect to the preservation of the rights of use 
or sale for affordable housing purposes. 

K.  “Development Code”: The City development code set forth in Title 19 of the City of Holtville Municipal 
Code.  

L. “Development Standard”: A site or construction condition, including but not limited to a height limitation, a 
setback requirement, a floor area ratio, an on-site open-space requirement, or a parking ratio, that applies 
to a residential development pursuant to the Development Code, the General Plan, or other City condition, 
law, policy, resolution, or regulation. (Gov. Code § 65915(o)(1))  

M. “Housing Development”: A development project of five or more residential units, including mixed-use 
developments,  and includes a subdivision or Common Interest Development that is approved by the City 
and consists of residential units or unimproved residential lots and either a project to substantially 
rehabilitate and convert an existing commercial building to residential use or the substantial rehabilitation 
of an existing multifamily dwelling where the result of the rehabilitation would be a net increase in available 
residential units. (Gov. Code § 65915(i))  

N. “Incentive”:  Means “incentives and concessions” as that phrase is used in Government Code Section 
65915. Specifically, incentives or concessions shall be limited to waivers or modifications of development 
standards.  

O.  “Market-rate Unit”: A dwelling unit that is not an Affordable Unit.  

P. “Maximum Allowable Residential Density”: The density allowed under the Development Code and the Land 
Use Element of the General Plan, or if a range of density is permitted, means the maximum allowable gross 
density for the specific district density range applicable to the project. If the density allowed under the 
Development Code is inconsistent with the density allowed under the Land Use Element of the General 
Plan, the General Plan density shall prevail. (Gov. Code § 65915(o)(2))  

Q.  “Minimum Affordable Housing Component”: A Housing Development project which includes a minimum of 
any of the following:  

1. Very Low Income Minimum Affordable Housing Component – Provides at least five percent 
(5%) of the total units for very low-income household residents (Gov. Code § 65915(b)(1)(B)); 
or  

2. Low Income Minimum Affordable Housing Component – Provides at least ten percent (10%) 
of the total units for low-income households (Gov. Code § 65915(b)(1)(A)); or  

3. Moderate Income Minimum Affordable Housing Component – Provides at least ten percent 
(10%) of the total dwelling units in a Common Interest Development for moderate-income 
households (Gov. Code § 65915(b)(1)(D)).  

R. “Other Incentives of Equivalent Financial Value”: The reduction or waiver of requirements which the City 
might otherwise apply as conditions of condominium conversion approval, but shall not be construed to 
require the City to provide cash transfer payments or other monetary compensation. (Gov. Code § 
65915.5(c))  

S. “Qualified Housing Development”: A housing development that meets the requirements of Section 
17.49.040 for density bonus.  

T. “Qualified Land”:  Land offered for donation in accordance with Section 17.49.100 that meets the criteria 
set forth in Section 17.49.100.A.  

U. “Senior Citizen Housing Development”: A residential development that is developed, substantially 
rehabilitated, or substantially renovated for, senior citizens and that has at least thirty-five (35) senior citizen 
housing development units. (Gov. Code § 65915(b)(1)(C))  
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V. “Senior Citizen Housing Development Unit”: A residential dwelling unit within a senior citizen housing 
development that is available to, and occupied by, a senior citizen as defined in Civil Code § 51.3.  

W. “Specific, Adverse Impact”: A significant, quantifiable, direct, and unavoidable impact, based on objective, 
identified written public health or safety standards, policies, or conditions as they existed on the date the 
application for the housing development was deemed complete. Inconsistency with the Development Code 
or General Plan land use designation shall not constitute a specific, adverse impact upon the public health 
or safety. (Gov. Code § 65589.5(d)(2)) 

X. “Total Units and Total Dwelling Units”: Dwelling units other than density bonus units. (Gov. Code § 
65915(b)(3))  

17.49.040 Eligibility for Density Bonuses and Incentives 

A. Density bonuses are available to affordable housing developers in accordance with this chapter for the 
following:  

1. Housing developments which include a minimum affordable housing component (Section 
17.49.070 and Section 17.49.190.A);  

2. Housing developments which include a minimum affordable housing component and a child 
care facility (Section 17.49.080);  

3. Senior citizen housing developments (Section 17.49.090); and  

4. Land donations for very low income housing (Section 17.49.100).  

5. Housing developments for transitional foster youth (Section 66025.9 of the Education Code), 

disabled veterans (Section 18541), or homeless persons, (42 U.S.C. sec 11301 et seq.) at 

the same affordability level as very-low income units with a 55-year affordability restriction 

B. For the purpose of calculating a density bonus, the residential units must be on contiguous sites that are 
the subject of one development application, but do not have to be based upon individual subdivision maps 
or parcels. (Gov. Code § 65915(i))  

17.49.050 Application and Fees Required  

A. Application Filing and Processing. When an applicant seeks a density bonus for a housing development 
that meets the criteria set out in Section 17.49.070 (California Government Code Section 65915) the 
affordable housing developer must comply with all of the following requirements:  

1. File an application for a density bonus in accordance with this section that includes a minimum 
affordable housing component, whether or not the project also requires or has been granted a 
Conditional Use Permit or other permits or approvals. (Gov. Code § 65915(d)(1)) 

2. State in the application the specific minimum affordable housing component proposed for the 
housing development. (Gov. Code § 65915(b)(2))  

3. Enter into an agreement with the City or its designee pursuant to Section 17.49.180 to maintain 
and enforce the affordable housing component of the housing development. (Gov. Code § 
65915(c))  

B. Application Fees.  Application fees shall be as set by the city council by resolution.  

1. If an application for a density bonus requires an unusual amount or specialized type of study 
or evaluation by city staff, a consultant or legal counsel, city staff shall estimate the cost thereof 
and require the applicant to pay an additional fee or make one or more deposits to pay such 
cost before the study or evaluation is begun.  On completion of the study or evaluation and 
before the city council decides the application, city staff shall determine the actual cost of the 
work and the difference between the actual cost and the amount paid by the applicant, and 
shall require the applicant to pay any deficiency or shall refund to the applicant any excess. 

17.49.060 Effect of Proposal for Waiver or Reduction of Development Standards 

A proposal for the waiver or reduction of development standards shall neither reduce nor increase the number of 
incentives or concessions to which the applicant is entitled pursuant to California Government Code § 65915(d). 
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17.49.070 Density Bonus Allowance for Housing Development with Affordable Housing Component 

A. If the requirements of Section 17.49.040 are met, then the affordable housing developer is entitled to a 
density bonus pursuant to Government Code § 65915(f) as follows:  

Table 17.49.070–1 

Density Bonus Allowance for Housing Development Projects with Affordable Housing Component 

Household 
Income 
Category 

Minimum 
Percent of 
Affordable 
Units 

Minimum 
Density 
Bonus 

Additional Density Bonus 
for Each 1% Increase in 
Affordable Units 

Maximum 
Percent of 
Affordable 
Units 

Maximum 
Possible 
Density 
Bonus 

Affordable Housing Development  

Very Low 
Income  

5% 20% 2.50% 11% 35% 

Low Income  10% 20% 1.50% 20% 35% 

Moderate 
Income 
(Common 
Interest 
Developments)  

10% 5% 1% 40% 35% 

B. As demonstrated in Table 17.49.070-1, the amount of density bonus to which the applicant is entitled shall 
vary according to the amount by which the percentage of affordable units offered by the applicant exceeds 
the percentage of the minimum affordable housing component; the applicant may also elect to accept a 
lesser percentage of density bonus. (Gov. Code § 65915(f).)  

C. All density calculations resulting in fractional units shall be rounded up to the next whole number. (Gov. 

Code § 65915(f)(5).)  

D. For housing developments for transitional foster youth, disabled veterans, or homeless persons, the density 

bonus shall be 20 percent of the number of the specified unit type.  

17.49.080 Density Bonus for Housing Development with Affordable Housing Component and Child Care 
Facility 

A. Criteria.  For a density bonus to be granted pursuant to Section 17.49.080.B for including a minimum 
affordable housing component with a child care facility in a housing development, all of the following must 
be satisfied:  

1. Compliance with each requirement in Section 17.49.040. (Gov. Code § 65915(h)(1))  

2. The housing development must include a child care facility that will be located on the premises 
of, as part of, or adjacent to, the housing development. (Gov. Code § 65915(h)(1))  

3. Approval of the housing development must be conditioned to ensure that both of the following 
occur:  

a. The child care facility must remain in operation for a period of time that is as long as or 
longer than the period of time during which the affordable units are required to remain 
affordable pursuant to Section 17.49.180. (Gov. Code § 65915(h)(2)(A))  

b. Of the children who attend the child care facility, the children of very low-income 
households, low-income households, or moderate-income households must equal a 
percentage that is equal to or greater than the percentage of dwelling units that are 
required under the respective minimum affordable housing component income category 
for which the density bonus is sought. (Gov. Code § 65915(h)(2)(B))  

4. The City has not made a finding based upon substantial evidence that the community has 
adequate child care facilities. (Gov. Code § 65915(h)(3))  
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B. Density Bonus Allowance.  If the requirements of Section 17.49.080.A are met, then an applicant for a 
housing development with an affordable housing component and child care facility is entitled to: 

1. A density bonus pursuant to Section 17.49.070; and  

2. An additional density bonus that is an amount of square feet of residential space that is equal 
to or greater than the amount of square feet in the child care facility. (Gov. Code § 
65915(h)(1)(A))  

17.49.090 Density Bonus for Senior Citizen Housing Development 

An applicant for a senior citizen housing development or a mobile home park that limits residency based on age 
requirements for housing for older persons pursuant to Civil Code Sections 798.76 or 799.5 is entitled to a density 
bonus of twenty percent (20%) of the number of senior citizen housing development units and up to a maximum of 
fifty percent (50%). (Gov. Code § 65915(b)(1)(C)&(f)(3))  

17.49.100 Density Bonus for Land Donations 

A. Criteria. For a density bonus for a qualified land donation to be granted pursuant to Section 17.49.100.B, 
all of the requirements of this section must be met.  

1. The applicant must be applying for a tentative subdivision map, parcel map, or other 
residential development approval. (Gov. Code § 65915(g)(1))  

2. The application must include at least a ten percent (10%) minimum affordable housing 
component for very low-income households. (Gov. Code § 65915(g)(1))  

3. The applicant must agree to donate and transfer qualified land which is land that meets both 
of the following criteria:  

a. The developable acreage and zoning classification of the land being transferred must 
be sufficient to permit construction of units affordable to very low-income households 
in an amount not less than ten percent (10%) of the number of residential units of 
the proposed development pursuant to Section 8116-2.5.1(a) (Gov. Code § 
65915(g)(2)(B)); and  

b. The transferred land must be at least 1 acre in size or of sufficient size to permit 
development of at least 40 units, have the appropriate General Plan land use 
designation, be appropriately zoned with appropriate development standards for 
development at the density described in Government Code Section 65583.2(c)(3), 
and is or will be served by adequate public facilities and infrastructure (Gov. Code § 
65915(g)(2)(C)).  

4. The qualified land must be transferred to the City or to a housing developer approved by the 
City. The City may require the applicant to identify and transfer the land to an approved housing 
developer. (Gov. Code § 65915(g)(2)(F)) 

5. The qualified land must have all of the permits and approvals, other than building permits, 
necessary for the development of the very low-income housing affordable units on the qualified 
land, not later than the date of approval of the final subdivision map, parcel map, or residential 
development application filed. However, the City may subject the proposed development to 
subsequent design review to the extent authorized by Government Code Section 65583.2(i) if 
the design is not reviewed by the City prior to the time of transfer. (Gov. Code § 65915(g)(2)(D))  

6. The qualified land must be donated and transferred no later than the date of approval of the 
final subdivision map, parcel map, or residential development application. (Gov. Code § 
65915(g)(2)(A))  

7. The qualified land and the affordable units must be subject to a deed restriction ensuring 
continued affordability of the units consistent with Section 17.49.180, which must be recorded 
against the qualified land at the time of the transfer. (Gov. Code § 65915(g)(2)(E))  

8. The qualified land must be within the boundary of the proposed development or, if the City 
agrees, within one-quarter mile of the boundary of the proposed development. (Gov. Code § 
65915(g)(2)(G))  
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9. A proposed source of funding for the very low-income household units must be identified not 
later than the date of approval of the final subdivision map, parcel map, or residential 
development application. (Gov. Code § 65915(g)(2)(H))  

B. Density Bonus Allowance for Qualified Land Donation for Very Low Income Housing. If the requirements of 
Section 17.49.100.A are satisfied, the applicant shall be entitled to at least a fifteen percent (15%) increase 
above the otherwise maximum allowable residential density for the entire development, as follows (Gov. 
Code § 65915(g)(1)): 

 

Table 17.49.100-1 

Density Bonus Allowances for Qualified Land Donation Projects 

Household 
Income 

Category 

Minimum 
Percentage of Very 
Low Income Units 

Density Bonus Additional Density 
Bonus for Each 1% 

Increase in Very Low 
Income Units 

Maximum Possible 
Density Bonus 

Very Low 
Income 
Housing 

10% of entire 
development 

15% 1% 50% (max. 
combined) 

C. All density calculations resulting in fractional units shall be rounded up to the next whole number. (Gov. 
Code § 65915(g)(2))  

17.49.110Affordable Housing Incentives 

A. Government Code subsections 65915(d), (j), (k), and (l) govern the following provisions regarding 
affordable housing incentives.  

B. Qualifications for Incentives. Subject to Section 17.49.130, all of the following applicable requirements must 
be satisfied to be granted an incentive(s) pursuant to Sections 17.49.110.B and 17.49.120:  

1. The applicant for an incentive must also be an applicant for a density bonus and qualify for a 
density bonus pursuant to Section 17.49.040 (Gov. Code § 65915(d)(1)).  

2. A specific written proposal for an incentive(s) must be submitted with the application for a 
density bonus (Gov. Code § 65915(b)(1) and (d)(1)).  

3. If an incentive(s) pursuant to Sections 17.49.110 and 17.49.120 is sought, the applicant must establish that 
each requested incentive would result in identifiable and actual cost reductions for the qualified housing 
development (Gov. Code § 65915(k)(1) & (3)).  

4. If an incentive(s) pursuant to Section 17.49.110.B.2 is sought, the applicant must establish that 
requirements of that section are met (Gov. Code § 65915(k)(2)).  

5. If an additional incentive for a child care facility is sought pursuant to Section 17.49.120.B, the applicant 
must establish that requirements of that section are met (Gov. Code § 65915(h)(1)(B)).  

6. The granting of an incentive shall not be interpreted, in and of itself, to require a General Plan amendment, 
zoning change, study, or other discretionary approval. The term “study” does not include reasonable 
documentation to demonstrative that the incentive or concession meets the definition pursuant to State law  
(Gov. Code § 65915(j).) An incentive is applicable only to the project for which it is granted. An applicant 
for an incentive may request a meeting with the Community Development Director (Director) and, if 
requested, the Director will meet with the applicant to discuss the proposal. (Gov. Code § 65915(d)(1).)  

C. Types of Incentives. For the purposes of this chapter, “incentive” means any of the following:  

1. A reduction in site development standards or a modification of Development Code 
requirements or design guidelines that exceed the minimum building standards approved by 
the California Building Standards Commission as provided in Part 2.5 (commencing with 
Section 18901) of Division 13 of the Health and Safety Code, including, but not limited to, a 
reduction in setback and square footage requirements and in the ratio of vehicular parking 
spaces (beyond the parking reductions already allowed under Section 17.49.150) that would 
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otherwise be required that results in identifiable, and actual cost reductions to provide for 
affordable housing costs, as defined in Section 50052.5 of the Health and Safety Code, or for 
rents for the targeted units to be set .(Gov. Code § 65915(k)(1))  

2. Approval of mixed-use zoning in conjunction with the qualified housing development if 
commercial, office, industrial, or other land uses will reduce the cost of the qualified housing 
development and if the commercial, office, industrial, or other land uses are compatible with 
the qualified housing development and the existing or planned development in the area where 
the proposed qualified housing development will be located. (Gov. Code § 65915(k)(2))  

3. Other regulatory incentives proposed by the affordable housing developer or the City that result 
in identifiable, and actual cost reductions to provide for affordable housing costs, as defined in 
Section 50052.5 of the Health and Safety Code, or for rents for the targeted units to be set . 
(Gov. Code § 65915(k)(3))  

4. Nothing in this section limits or requires the provision of direct financial incentives by the City 
for the qualified housing development, including the provision of publicly owned land, or the 
waiver of fees or dedication requirements. (Gov. Code § 65915(l))  

17.49.120 Number of Incentives Granted 

A. Subject to Section 17.49.130, the applicant who meets the requirements of Section 17.49.110.A shall 
receive the following number of incentives described below and as shown in Table 17.49.120-1.  

1. One incentive for qualified housing development projects that include at least ten percent (10%) 
of the total units for low-income households, at least five percent (5%) for very low-income 
households, or at least ten percent (10%) for persons and families of moderate-income 
households in a common interest development. (Gov. Code § 65915(d)(2)(A))  

2. Two incentives for qualified housing development projects that include at least twenty percent 
(20%) of the total units for low-income households, at least ten percent (10%) for very low-
income households, or at least twenty percent (20%) for persons and families of moderate-
income households in a common interest development. (Gov. Code § 65915(d)(2)(B))  

3. Three incentives for qualified housing development projects that include at least thirty percent 
(30%) of the total units for low-income households, at least fifteen percent (15%) for very low-
income households, or at least thirty percent (30%) for persons and families of moderate-
income households in a common interest development. (Gov. Code § 65915(d)(2)(C))  

B. A qualified housing development proposal that includes a child care facility shall be granted an additional 
incentive that contributes significantly to the economic feasibility of the construction of the child care facility. 
(Gov. Code § 65915(h)(1)(B))  

Table 17.49.120-1 

Incentive Allowances for Qualified Housing Developments 

Income Category Minimum % of Affordable Units 

Very Low Income 5% 10% 15% 

Low Income 10% 20% 30% 

Common Interest Development (Moderate 
Income) 10% 20% 30% 

Incentives Allowed 1  2 3 
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17.49.130 Criteria for Denial of Application for Incentives 

A. Except as otherwise provided in this chapter or by state law, if the requirements of Section 17.49.110.A are 
met, the City shall grant the incentive(s) that are authorized by Sections 17.49.110.B and 17.49.120 unless 
a written finding, based upon substantial evidence, is made with respect to any of the following, in which 
case the City may refuse to grant the incentive(s):  

1. The incentive is not required in order to provide affordable housing costs or affordable rents for 
the affordable units subject to the qualified housing development application. (Gov. Code § 
65915(d)(1)(A))  

2. The incentive would have a specific, adverse impact, as defined in Government Code Section 
65589.5(d)(2), upon the public health and safety or the physical environment or on any real 
property that is listed in the California Register of Historical Resources and for which there is 
no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the specific, adverse impact without 
rendering the development unaffordable to low- and moderate-income households. (Gov. Code 
§ 65915(d)(1)(B); Gov. Code § 65915 (d)(3))  

3. The incentive would be contrary to state or federal law. (Gov. Code § 65915(d)(1)(C)) 

4. The community has adequate child care facilities, in which case the additional incentive for a 
child care facility pursuant to Section 17.49.120.B may be denied. (Gov. Code § 65915(h)(3)) 

17.49.140 Waiver or Modification of Development Standards 

A. Requirements for Waiver or Modification of Development Standards 

1. Application. To qualify for a waiver or reduction of one or more development standards, the 
applicant must submit a written application (together with an application for a qualified housing 
development) that states the specific development standard(s) sought to be modified or waived 
and the basis of the request (Gov. Code § 65915(e)(1)). An applicant for a waiver or 
modification of development standard(s) pursuant to this section may request a meeting with 
the Director to review the proposal. If requested, the Director shall meet with the applicant 
(Gov. Code § 65915(e)(1)). An application for the waiver or reduction of development 
standard(s) pursuant to this section shall neither reduce nor increase the number of incentives 
to which the applicant is entitled pursuant to Section 17.49.110. (Gov. Code § 65915(e)(2)) 

2. Findings. All of the following findings must be made for each waiver or reduction requested: 

a. The development standard for which a waiver or reduction is requested will have 
the effect of physically precluding the construction of the proposed qualified 
housing development at the densities or with the incentives permitted under this 
chapter. (Gov. Code § 65915(e)(1)) 

b. The requested waiver or reduction of a development standard will not have a 
specific, adverse impact, as defined in Government Code Section 65589.5(d)(2), 
upon the health, safety, or physical environment or, if such a specific, adverse 
impact exists, there is a feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the 
specific, adverse impact. (Gov. Code § 65915(e)(1)) 

c. The requested waiver or reduction of a development standard will not have an 
adverse impact on any real property that is listed in the California Register of 
Historical Resources. (Gov. Code § 65915(e)(1)) 

d. The requested waiver or reduction of a development standard is not contrary to 
state or federal law. (Gov. Code § 65915(e)(1)) 

3. Granting Application for Waiver or Modification of Development Standards. If the requirements 
of Sections 17.49.140.A are satisfied, the application for waiver or modification of development 
standard(s) shall be granted. If the requirements of Sections 17.49.140.A are satisfied, the City 
shall not apply a development standard that will have the effect of physically precluding the 
construction of a qualified housing development at the densities or with the incentives permitted 
by this chapter. (Gov. Code § 65915(e)(1))  
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17.49.150 Parking Standard Modifications for Qualified Housing Developments 

A. Requirements for Parking Standard Modifications. Parking standard modifications pursuant to Section 
17.49.150.B are available only for qualified housing developments. An application for parking standard 
modifications stating the specific modification requested pursuant to Section 17.49.150.B must be 
submitted with the qualified housing development application. (Gov. Code § 65915(p)(3)) 

B. Parking Standard Modifications. If the requirements of Section 17.49.150.A  are met, the vehicular parking 
ratio, inclusive of handicapped and guest parking, shall not exceed the following ratios (Gov. Code § 
65915(p)(1)), except where noted under Section 17.49.150.C: 

1. Zero to one bedroom: one on-site parking space.  

2. Two to three bedrooms: two on-site parking spaces.  

3. Four and more bedrooms: two and one-half on-site parking spaces.  

C. Exceptions.  Upon request of the applicant, the following maximum parking standards shall apply, inclusive 
of handicap and guest parking, to the entire housing development subject to this chapter, as required by 
Government Code Section 65915(p)(2): 

1. A maximum of 0.5 parking spaces per bedroom shall apply when all of the following conditions 
apply: 

a. The development includes the maximum percentage of low- or very low-income units 
provided for Section 17.49.070, Density Bonus Allowance for Housing Development 
with Affordable Housing Component. 

b. The development is located within one-half mile of a major transit stop, as defined in 
subdivision (b) of Section 21155 of the Public Resources Code. 

c. There is unobstructed access to the major transit stop from the development. A 
development shall have unobstructed access to a major transit stop if a resident is 
able to access the major transit stop without encountering natural or constructed 
impediments. 

2. A maximum of 0.5 parking spaces per unit shall apply when all of the following conditions apply: 

a. The development consists solely of rental units, exclusive of a manager’s unit or 
units, with an affordable housing cost to lower-income families, as provided in 
Section 50052.5 of the Health and Safety Code.  

b. The development is located within one-half mile of a major transit stop, as defined in 
subdivision (b) of Section 21155 of the Public Resources Code. 

c. There is unobstructed access to the major transit stop from the development. A 
development shall have unobstructed access to a major transit stop if a resident is 
able to access the major transit stop without encountering natural or constructed 
impediments. 

3. A maximum of 0.5 parking spaces per unit shall apply when all of the following conditions apply: 

a. The development consists solely of rental units, exclusive of a manager’s unit or 
units, with an affordable housing cost to lower-income families, as provided in 
Section 50052.5 of the Health and Safety Code.  

b. The development is for individuals who are 62 years of age or older which complies 
with Sections 51.2 and 51.3 of the Civil Code. 

c. The development shall have either paratransit service or unobstructed access, within 
one-half mile, to fixed bus route service that operates at least eight times per day. 

4. A maximum of 0.3 parking spaces per unit shall apply when all of the following conditions apply: 

a. The development consists solely of rental units, exclusive of a manager’s unit or 
units, with an affordable housing cost to lower-income families, as provided in 
Section 50052.5 of the Health and Safety Code.  
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b. The development is a special needs housing development, as defined in Section 
51312 of the Health and Safety Code. 

c. The development shall have either paratransit service or unobstructed access, 
within one-half mile, to fixed bus route service that operates at least eight times 
per day. 

D. If the total number of parking spaces required for the qualified housing development is other than a whole 
number, the number shall be rounded up to the next whole number. For purposes of this section, “on-site 
parking” may be provided through tandem parking or uncovered parking, but not through on-street parking. 
(Gov. Code § 65915(p)(2))  

E. Except as otherwise provided in this section, all other provisions of Chapter 17.54 (Off-Street Parking) 
applicable to residential development apply.  

F. An applicant may request additional parking incentives beyond those provided in this section if applied for 
pursuant to Section 17.49.110. (Gov. Code § 65915(p)(3))  

G. Notwithstanding allowances in Section 17.49.150(C) above, if the City or an independent consultant has 
conducted an area-wide or jurisdiction-wide parking study in the last seven years, then the City may impose 
a higher vehicular parking ratio not to exceed the ratio described in Section 17.49.150.B, based on 
substantial evidence found in the parking study that includes, but is not limited to, an analysis of parking 
availability, differing levels of transit access, walkability access to transit services, the potential for shared 
parking, the effect of parking requirements on the cost of market-rate and subsidized developments, and 
the lower rates of car ownership for low- and very low-income individuals, including seniors and special 
needs individuals. The City shall pay the costs of any new study. The City shall make findings, based on a 
parking study completed in conformity with this paragraph, supporting the need for the higher parking ratio. 

17.49.160 Density Bonus and Affordable Housing Incentives Program 

A. Project Design and Phasing. Projects seeking an affordable housing benefit pursuant to this chapter must 
comply with the following requirements, unless otherwise specified in writing by the Director:  

1. Location/Dispersal of Units. Affordable units shall be reasonably dispersed throughout the 
development where feasible and shall contain on average the same (or greater) number of 
bedrooms as the market-rate units.  

2. Phasing. If a project is to be developed in phases, each phase must contain the same or 
substantially similar proportion of affordable units and market-rate units. 

3. Exterior Appearance. The exterior appearance and quality of the affordable units must be 
similar to the market-rate units. The exterior materials and improvements of the affordable units 
must be similar to, and architecturally compatible with, the market-rate units.  

B. Application Requirements. An application for one or more affordable housing benefits must be submitted 
as follows:  

1. Each affordable housing benefit requested must be specifically stated in writing on the 
application form provided by the City.  

2. The application must include the information and documents necessary to establish that the 
requirements of this chapter are satisfied for each affordable housing benefit requested, 
including:  

a. For density bonus requests, that the requirements of Section 17.49.040 are met;  

b. For incentive requests, that the requirements of Section 17.49.110 are met;  

c. For development standard waiver or modification requests, that the requirements of 
Section 17.49.140 are met; and/or  

d. For parking standard modification requests, that the requirements of Section 
17.49.150 are met.  

3. The application must be submitted concurrently with a complete application for a qualified 
housing development.  

 



12 

4. The application must include a site plan that complies with and includes the following:  

a. For senior citizen housing development projects, the number and location of 
proposed total units and density bonus units.  

b. For all qualified housing development projects other than senior citizen housing 
development projects, the number and location of proposed total units, affordable 
units, and density bonus units. The density bonus units shall be permitted in 
geographic areas of the qualified housing development other than the areas where 
the affordable units are located. (Gov. Code § 65915(i))  

c. The location, design, and phasing criteria required by Section 17.49.160.A, including 
any proposed development standard(s) modifications or waivers pursuant to Section 
17.49.140.  

5. The application for a qualified housing development must state the level of affordability of the 
affordable units and include a proposal for compliance with Section 17.49.180 for ensuring 
affordability.  

6. If a density bonus is requested for a qualified land donation pursuant to Section 17.49.100, the 
application must show the location of the qualified land in addition to including sufficient 
information to establish that each requirement in Section 17.49.100 has been met.  

7. If an additional density bonus or incentive is requested for a child care facility pursuant to 
Section 17.49.080 and/or Section 17.49.120.B the application shall show the location and 
square footage of the child care facility and include sufficient information to establish that each 
requirement in Section 17.49.080 and/or Section 17.49.120.B has been met.  

C. An application for an affordable housing benefit under this chapter will not be processed until all of the 
provisions of this section are complied with as determined by the Director, and shall be processed 
concurrently with the application for the qualified housing development project for which the affordable 
housing benefit is sought.  Prior to the submittal of an application for a qualified housing development, an 
applicant may submit to the Director a preliminary proposal for affordable housing benefits. The Director 
shall, within 90 days of receipt of a written proposal, notify the applicant of the Director’s preliminary 
response and schedule a meeting with the applicant to discuss the proposal and the Director’s preliminary 
response.  

17.49.170 Determination on Density Bonus and Affordable Housing Incentives Program Requirements 

A. The decision-making body for the underlying qualified housing development application is authorized to 
approve or deny an application for an affordable housing benefit in accordance with this chapter.  

1. Affordable Housing Benefit Determinations.  An application for an affordable housing benefit 
shall be granted if the requirements of this chapter are satisfied unless:  

a. The application is for an incentive for which a finding is made in accordance with 
Section 17.49.130; or  

b. The underlying application for the qualified housing development is not approved 

independent of and without consideration of the application for the affordable 

housing benefit.  

c, The housing development is proposed on any property that includes a parcel or 
parcels on which rental dwelling units are or, if the dwelling units have been vacated 
or demolished in the five-year period preceding the application, have been subject 
to a recorded covenant, ordinance, or law that restricts rents to levels affordable to 
persons and families of lower or very low income; or occupied by lower or very low 
income households, unless the proposed housing development replaces those 
units, and either of the following applies: (i) the proposed housing development, 
inclusive of the units replaced pursuant to this paragraph, contains affordable units 
at the percentages set forth under state law; or (ii) each unit in the development, 
exclusive of a manager's unit or units, is affordable to, and occupied by, either a 
lower or very low income household. 
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2. Affordable Housing Benefit Compliance Provisions. To ensure compliance with this chapter 
and state law, approval of an application for an affordable housing benefit may be subject to, 
without limitation:  

a. The imposition of conditions of approval to the qualified housing development, 
including imposition of fees necessary to monitor and enforce the provisions of this 
chapter;  

b. An affordable housing agreement and, if applicable, an equity sharing agreement 
pursuant to Section 1.72.190; and  

c. Recorded deed restriction implementing conditions of approval and/or contractual or 
legally mandated provisions.  

3. A decision regarding an affordable housing benefit application is subject to the appeal 
provisions of Section 8111-7.  

17.49.180 Affordable Housing Agreement and Equity Sharing Agreements 

A. General Requirements. No density bonus pursuant to Section 17.49.040 shall be granted unless and until 
the affordable housing developer, or its designee approved in writing by the Director, enters into an 
affordable housing agreement and, if applicable, an equity sharing agreement, with the City or its designee 
pursuant to and in compliance with this section (Gov. Code § 65915(c)). The agreements shall be in the 
form provided by the City which shall contain terms and conditions mandated by, or necessary to 
implement, state law and this Article. The Director may designate a qualified administrator or entity to 
administer the provisions of this section on behalf of the City. The affordable housing agreement shall be 
recorded prior to, or concurrently with, final map recordation or, where the qualified housing development 
does not include a map, prior to issuance of a building permit for any structure on the site. The Director is 
hereby authorized to enter into the agreements authorized by this section on behalf of the City upon 
approval of the agreements by City Attorney for legal form and sufficiency.  

B. Low or Very Low Income Minimum Affordable Housing Component or Senior Citizen Housing Development. 

1. The affordable housing developer of a qualified housing development based upon the inclusion 
of low income- and/or very low-income affordable units must enter into an agreement with the 
City to maintain the continued affordability of the affordable units for 55 years (for rental units) 
or 30 years (for for-sale units), or a longer period if required by the construction or mortgage 
financing assistance program, mortgage insurance program, or rental subsidy program, as 
follows (Gov. Code § 65915(c)(1)).  The agreement shall establish specific compliance 
standards and specific remedies available to the city if such compliance standards are not met. 
The agreement shall, among other things, specify the number of lower-income affordable units 
by number of bedrooms; standards for qualifying household incomes or other qualifying criteria, 
such as age; standards for maximum rents or sales prices; the person responsible for certifying 
tenant or owner incomes; procedures by which vacancies will be filled and units sold; required 
annual report and monitoring fees; restrictions imposed on lower-income affordable units on 
sale or transfer; and methods of enforcing such restrictions. 

2. Rental units. Rents for the low-income and very low-income affordable units that qualified the 
housing development for the density bonus pursuant to Section 17.49.040 shall be set and 
maintained at an affordable rent (Gov. Code § 65915(c)(1)).  The agreement shall set rents for 
the lower-income density bonus units at an affordable rent as defined in Health and Safety 
Code Section 50053. The agreement shall require that owner-occupied units be made available 
at an affordable housing cost as defined in Health and Safety Code Section 50052.5. 

3. For-Sale Units. Owner-occupied low-income and very low-income affordable units that qualified 
the housing development for the density bonus pursuant to Section 17.49.040 shall be 
available at an affordable housing cost (Gov. Code § 65915(c)(1)). The affordable housing 
developer of qualified housing development based upon a very low- or low-income minimum 
affordable component shall enter into an equity sharing agreement with the City or developer. 
The agreement shall be between the City and the buyer or the developer and the buyer if the 
developer is the seller of the unit. The City shall enforce the equity sharing unless it is in conflict 
with the requirements of another public funding source or law (Gov. Code § 65915(c)(2)). The 
equity sharing agreement shall include at a minimum the following provisions: 
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a. Upon resale, the seller of the unit shall retain the value of any improvements, the 
down payment, and the seller's proportionate share of appreciation. The City shall 
recapture any initial subsidy, as defined in subparagraph (b), and its proportionate 
share of appreciation, as defined in subparagraph (c), which amount shall be used 
within five years for any of the purposes described in subdivision (e) of Section 
33334.2 of the Health and Safety Code that promote homeownership. 

b. For purposes of this section, the City's initial subsidy shall be equal to the fair market 
value of the home at the time of initial sale minus the initial sale price to the very low-
income household, plus the amount of any down payment assistance or mortgage 
assistance. If upon resale the market value is lower than the initial market value, then 
the value at the time of the resale shall be used as the initial market value. 

c. For purposes of this subdivision, the City's proportionate share of appreciation shall 
be equal to the ratio of the City's initial subsidy to the fair market value of the home 
at the time of initial sale. 

4. Senior Units. At least thirty-five (35) senior citizen housing development units are maintained 
and available for rent or sale to senior citizens as defined in Civil Code Section 51.3.  

C. Moderate-Income Minimum Affordable Housing Component.  

1. The affordable housing developer of a qualified housing development based upon the inclusion 
of moderate-income affordable units in a common interest development must enter into an 
agreement with the City ensuring that: 

a. The initial occupants of the moderate income affordable units that are directly related 
to the receipt of the density bonus are persons and families of a moderate-income 
household. 

b. The units are offered at an affordable housing cost. (Gov. Code § 65915(c)(2))  

2. The affordable housing developer of a qualified housing development based upon a moderate-
income minimum affordable component shall enter into an equity sharing agreement with the 
City or developer (Gov. Code § 65915(c)(2)). The agreement shall be between the City and the 
buyer or the developer and the buyer if the developer is the seller of the unit. The City shall 
enforce the equity sharing agreement unless it is in conflict with the requirements of another 
public funding source or law (Gov. Code § 65915(c)(2)). The equity sharing agreement shall 
include at a minimum the following provisions:  

a. Upon resale, the seller of the unit shall retain the value of improvements, the down 
payment, and the seller’s proportionate share of appreciation. The City shall 
recapture any initial subsidy, as defined in subparagraph b, and its proportionate 
share of appreciation, as defined in subparagraph c, which amount shall be used 
within five years for any of the purposes described in Health and Safety Code Section 
33334.2(e) that promote homeownership. (Gov. Code § 65915(c)(2)(A))  

b. The City’s initial subsidy shall be equal to the fair market value of the unit at the time 
of initial sale minus the initial sale price to the moderate-income household, plus the 
amount of any down payment assistance or mortgage assistance. If upon resale the 
market value is lower than the initial market value, then the value at the time of the 
resale shall be used as the initial market value. (Gov. Code § 65915(c)(2)(B))  

c. The City’s proportionate share of appreciation shall be equal to the ratio of the City’s 
initial subsidy to the fair market value of the unit at the time of initial sale. (Gov. Code 
§ 65915(c)(2)(C))  

3. Minimum Affordable Housing Component and Child Care Facility.  If an additional density 
bonus or incentive is granted because a child care facility is included in the qualified housing 
development, the affordable housing agreement shall also include the affordable housing 
developer’s obligations pursuant to Section 17.49.080.A.3 for maintaining a child care facility, 
if not otherwise addressed through conditions of approval.   
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17.49.190 Density Bonus or Incentives for Condominium Conversion Projects 

A. Requirements for density bonus or incentive for condominium conversion projects.  

1. Applicant to convert apartments to a condominium project agrees to provide at least: 

a. Thirty-three percent (33%) of the total units of the proposed condominium project 
to persons and families of moderate-income households, or  

b. Fifteen percent (15%) of the total units of the proposed condominium project to 
persons and families of low-income households.  

2. If applicant agrees to pay for the reasonably necessary administrative costs incurred by the 
City pursuant to this section, the City shall either:  

a. Grant a density bonus, or  

b. Provide other incentives of equivalent financial value. (Gov. Code § 65915.5(a))  

B. Definition of Density Bonus for Condominium Conversion Projects. If the requirements of Section 
17.49.190.A are met, then the condominium conversion project will be entitled to an increase in units of 
twenty-five percent (25%) over the number of apartments, to be provided within the existing structure(s) 
proposed for conversion from apartments to condominiums. (Gov. Code § 65915.5(b))  

C. Pre-Submittal Preliminary Proposals for Density Bonus or Incentive for Condominium Conversion 
Projects. Prior to the submittal of a formal request for subdivision map approval or other application for 
necessary discretionary approvals, an applicant to convert apartments to a condominium project may 
submit to the Director a preliminary proposal for density bonus or other incentives of equivalent financial 
value. The Director shall, within 90 days of receipt of a written proposal, notify the applicant of the 
Director’s preliminary response and schedule a meeting with the applicant to discuss the proposal and 
the Director’s preliminary response. (Gov. Code § 65915.5(d))  

D. Application for Density Bonus or Incentives for Condominium Conversion Projects. An applicant must 
submit a completed application provided by the City for a density bonus or for other incentives of 
equivalent financial value. The application must be submitted concurrently with the application for the 
condominium conversion project. The application must include the following:  

1. All information and documentation necessary to establish that the requirements of Section 
17.49.190.A are met;  

2. The proposal for a density bonus or the proposal for other incentives of equivalent financial 
value;  

3. Site plans demonstrating the location of the units to be converted, the affordable units, the 
market-rate units, and the density bonus units in the condominium conversion project; and  

4. Any other information and documentation requested by the City to determine if the 
requirements of Section 17.49.190.A are met.  

E. Both the application for a density bonus or other incentives of equivalent financial value and the 
application for the condominium conversion must be complete before the application for a density bonus 
or other incentives of equivalent financial value will be considered.  

F. Granting Density Bonus or Incentive for Condominium Conversion Projects.  

1. Approval  

a. If the requirements of Section 17.49.190.A are met, the decision-making body for the 
condominium conversion project application is authorized to grant an application for 
a density bonus or other incentives of equivalent financial value, subject to Section 
17.49.190.F.2. 

b. Reasonable conditions may be placed on the granting of a density bonus or other 
incentives of equivalent financial value that are found appropriate, including but not 
limited to entering into an affordable housing agreement pursuant to Section 
17.49.180 which ensures continued affordability of units to subsequent purchasers 
who are persons and families of moderate-income or low-income households. (Gov. 
Code § 65915.5(a)) 
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2. Ineligibility. An applicant shall be ineligible for a density bonus or other incentives of equivalent 
financial value if the apartments proposed for conversion constitute a qualified housing 
development for which a density bonus as defined in Section 16-411 or other incentives were 
provided. (Gov. Code § 65915.5(f).)  

3. Decision on Condominium Conversion Project. Nothing in this section shall be construed to 
require the City to approve a proposal to convert apartments to condominiums. (Gov. Code § 
65915.5(e))  

17.49.200 Enforcement Provisions 

A. Occupancy. Prior to occupancy of an affordable unit, the household's eligibility for occupancy of the 
affordable unit must be demonstrated to the City. This provision applies throughout the restricted time 
periods pursuant to Section 17.49.180 and applies to any change in ownership or tenancy, including 
subletting, of the affordable unit.  

B. Ongoing Compliance. Upon request, the affordable housing developer must show that the affordable 
units are continually in compliance with this chapter and the terms of the affordable housing agreement. 
Upon 30-day notice, the City may perform an audit to determine compliance with this chapter and the 
terms of any agreement or restriction.  

C. Enforcement. The City has the authority to enforce the provisions of this chapter, the terms of affordable 
housing agreements and equity sharing agreements, deed restrictions, covenants, resale restrictions, 
promissory notes, deed of trust, conditions of approval, permit conditions, and any other requirements 
placed on the affordable units or the approval of the qualified housing development. In addition to the 
enforcement powers granted in this chapter, the City may, at its discretion, take any other enforcement 
action permitted by law, including those authorized by City ordinances. Such enforcement actions may 
include, but are not limited to, a civil action for specific performance of the restrictions and agreement(s), 
damages for breach of contract, restitution, and injunctive relief. The remedies provided for herein shall 
be cumulative and not exclusive and shall not preclude the City from seeking any other remedy or relief 
to which it otherwise would be entitled under law or equity. 
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DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 428 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HOLTVILLE 

AMENDING TEXT IN CHAPTER 17 OF THE HOLTVILLE ZONING 

ORDINANCE, AND ADDING SECTION 17.49 REGARDING DENSITY 

BONUS PROVISIONS 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Holtville has an adopted Housing 
Element which integrated policies and actions to be implemented during the older 
Planning Period including Goal, Policy and Action Item 1.2 of Housing Goals to density 
bonus and other regulatory incentives in single family zones in compliance with 
Government Code Section 65915; and 

WHEREAS, said Housing Element policies and call for revisions to the City of 
Holtville Zoning Ordinance and it is the City Council’s desire to amend the City of 
Holtville Zoning Ordinance in an effort to further the objectives of the Housing Element 
and be in conformance with State Law; and 

WHEREAS, on December 27, 2016 following a public hearing, the Planning 
Commission weighed the evidence presented therein, and recommended that the City 
Council adopt the Zoning Text Amendment and New Chapter on Density Bonus; and 

WHEREAS, on January 23, 2017, the City Council held a duly noticed public 
hearing and weighed the evidence presented therein, information which is on file with 
the City Clerk; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 17.02.10 of the Zoning Ordinance, the City 

Council  of the City of Holtville does hereby find that: 

(a) The above stated recitals are incorporated as findings, and

(b) The proposed amendments are consistent with the objectives of the Holtville

Housing Element of the Holtville General Plan and development policies

adopted by the Holtville City Council, and

(c) The adoption of this ordinance is exempt from CEQA review per section

15061 (b)(3), and a Notice of Exemption has been filed .

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1: Zoning Ordinance shall be regulated and restrict land uses pursuant 

to the changes and standards noted under Exhibit A Zoning Text Amendments, 

incorporated hereto as referenced. 

SECTION 2:   A new Section 17.49 “Density Bonus” to the Holtville Zoning 

Ordinance is hereby incorporated hereto as referenced under Exhibit B, incorporated. 

SECTION 3: If any section, part or provision of this Ordinance is held invalid or 
unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other portion of this 
Ordinance, and all sections, parts and provisions of this Ordinance shall be severable.   



 
 
SECTION 4:  This ordinance shall take effect and shall be in force thirty (30) 

days after the date of adoption, and prior to the expiration of fifteen (15) days from the 
passage thereof, shall be published at least once in a newspaper of general circulation 
printed and published in the County of Holtville, together with the names of the members 
of the City Council voting for and against the same. 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED at the regular meeting of the City 
Council of the City of Holtville this 23rd day of January, 2017. 

_______________________________ 
Mike Goodsell, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

I the undersigned, City Clerk of the City of Holtville, DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that 
the foregoing Ordinance #428 was duly approved and adopted at a regular 
meeting of the City Council held on the 23rd day of January, 2017, by the 
following votes: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 

___________________________ 
Denise Garcia, City Clerk 
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